
Date Published:7 March 2019     

Police and Crime Panel

Friday 15 March 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

ORGANISATION ITEMS

1  APOLOGIES Stephen Bace

2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8) Stephen Bace

3  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS Stephen Bace

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  TRI-FORCE UPDATE 

The Commissioner to update the Panel with regards to the current 
Tri-Force arrangements. 

PCC Martin Surl

5  CHIEF EXECUTIVE REPORT (Pages 9 - 16) Paul Trott

6  CRIMINAL JUSTICE 

To  better understand the context behind the changes to the 
Criminal Justice system and its impact.

Amanda 
Segelov

7  PCP HIGHLIGHT REPORT (Pages 17 - 56) Richard Bradley



    

NEXT MEETING

19 July 2019
13 September 2019
12 November 2019

Membership –  Cllr David Brown, Cllr Joe Harris, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Loraine Patrick, 
Cllr Steve Robinson, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive Cllr Julian Beale, Cllr Jonny 
Brownsteen, Cllr Gerald Dee, Cllr Collette Finnegan, Cllr Rob Garnham, Cllr Bruce Hogan, Cllr 
Keith Pearson, Cllr Mattie Ross and Cllr Louis Savage

Added Members - William Alexander (Independent Member) and Martin Smith (Independent 
member)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p64 of the 

Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
MINUTES of a meeting of the Police and Crime Panel held on Monday 4 February 2019 at 
the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
William Alexander, Cllr Julian Beale, Cllr David Brown, Cllr Jonny 
Brownsteen, Cllr Gerald Dee, Cllr Collette Finnegan, Cllr Rob Garnham, 
Cllr Joe Harris, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Bruce Hogan,  Cllr Lorraine Patrick, 
Cllr Keith Pearson,  Cllr Steve Robinson, Cllr Mattie Ross, Cllr Louis 
Savage, Cllr Brian Tipper, Cllr Will Windsor Clive (Chair),  

Substitutes:

In attendance: PCC Martin Surl, Chris Brierley, Paul Trott, Peter Skelton, 
Mark Astle, Jo Arnold, Richard Bradley, Ruth Greenwood, 
Chief Constable Rod Hansen,

Apologies: Martin Smith

1. APOLOGIES 

The apologies for the meeting were noted.

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

No additional declarations were made.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record.

4. SAFE AND SOCIAL DRIVING 

4.1 Mark Astle (Fire and Rescue Service) and Jo Arnold (co-ordinator Safe and Social 
Driving) gave a presentation on this priority within the Commissioner’s Police and 
Crime Plan. The Commissioner introduced the item emphasising the word ‘safe’ 
within the priority name. He explained that the Chief Fire Officer led on the item, 
and that Mark Astle had led on this in the absence of a Chief. In regards to the 
Road Safety Partnership, he explained that he had never withdrawn money from 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

that partnership. The presentation outlined the current position for Gloucestershire 
compared to national statistics and the focus on prevention through education.

4.2 Members understood that in 2016, 27 people had lost their lives.  In 2017 20 people 
had lost their lives. The majority of fatalities had happened in the later months of the 
years, this was due to changing weather conditions, darkened nights and 
behaviours. It was behaviour which could be changed. It was explained that most 
fatalities had occurred in the Cotswolds. Male fatalities were higher than female 
fatalities in all modes of transport other than car passenger. 

4.3 With regards to education, the focus was on 16-24 year olds. This was because 
although there had overall been a decrease in the number of fatalities between 
those ages, there had been an increase already in the current year compared to the 
previous year. It was important to continue to deliver messages that would change 
driver behaviour. The Fire Service was now delivering education prevention 
packages to year 12 and 13 students across the county. By Spring 2019, 8 
firefighters would achieve accreditation to ensure the continued delivery of this. 
Members heard details of the ‘What if?’ Road Show, which would be delivered to 
3700 students throughout February and March. 

4.4 In September 2018, a ‘Leave your mobile phone alone’ campaign was run for a 
week. The lack of knowledge and understanding from the public was evident of how 
prevalent the problem was. Speed camera vans had been placed in strategic 
locations. Drink/ Drug Drive campaign in December was carried out through social 
media, police operational support and educational support. The target audience 
was 17-25 year old male drivers. Members received details of how the campaigns 
were co-ordinated showing the partnership work with the Fire and Rescue Service. 

4.5 As part of the ‘Choose Zero’ campaign 1142 students had received education 
throughout December. This had been very effective and would continue moving 
forward. Campaigns for the future, included seat belts and speeding on top of the 
continued mobile phone and drink and drug driving campaigns. 

4.6 In the future there would be a review of the current action plan taking into account 
the data the team had received. These messages would be included in the Safe 
and Well visits that the Fire Service carried out. Options included the use of virtual 
reality headsets to give people a real insight into what it would feel like to be 
involved in an incident.  One aspiration was to develop a safe and social driving 
app. 

4.7 The Commissioner thanked the Fire Service and the Constabulary for the 
partnership work being carried out. He outlined the new technology being used by 
the Police to help support this work and noted that the  Chief Constable would 
welcome an increase in precept which would help fund further work in regards to 
Safe and Social Driving. The National Drivers Offending retrain scheme had been 
very effective, with the cost to the public reduced and more locations for people to 
go for those courses. 1% of the Policing budget was top sliced as part of the 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Commissioner’s Fund and this funded a great deal of work. The Police did not 
receive any money from enforcing fines, the only funds allowed to be generated 
were those that directly paid for the enforcement and retraining. 

4.8 One member asked about any targeted work around the effects of prescribed drugs 
of drivers. In response it was explained that this was about implementing these 
messages into Safe and Well Visits. Another member asked whether work was 
being carried out with pharmacies to help provide that information to people of the 
effects of medication on driving. In addition the member emphasised the 
importance of educating at an even younger age about safety on the road 
referencing children as young as seven playing games on the road. The member 
referenced the work of Police Cubs and the work in educating around speeding.

4.9 With regards to the Cotswolds having the highest amount of fatalities, one member 
referred to the A429 task group and asked whether there needed to be more visible 
campaigns such as signage on the road referencing the number of fatalities on a 
road. In response the Commissioner stated that ‘Highways’ was a county council 
responsibility but that he had provided a degree of funding for signage. 

4.10 One member asked whether the Constabulary were asking young people on how 
they wanted to be engaged? It was explained that this work was very much led by 
young people and that the team were most interested in what they had to say. 
Members received details of collaboration across emergency services through the 
south west collaboration board and  about the learning from what had worked in 
other areas. Members understood the role of the Skillzone centre in terms of 
helping to engage with young people.

4.11 Accident figures for November and December emphasised that this was the most 
dangerous time of the year and it was important to get that message out. It was 
explained that a lot of campaigning was carried out at that time of year. 

4.12 One member explained that he thought that dash cams were useful in terms of 
providing evidence of where people were acting inappropriately on the road. This 
was something that was being taken forward in the future. 

4.13 One member raised the lack of statistics to help support members in getting 
highways improvement work started. He asked if any work was being done to share 
those statistics. The Commissioner shared the member’s frustration that sometimes 
it was about pre-emptive work being taken in areas where an accident had not 
happened yet. In response to a question it was explained that insurance companies 
would not hand over data for data protection reasons. 

4.14 One member asked whether the Police took action against incidents such as cars 
with only one headlight which in rural lanes caused problems. It was explained that 
there was money in the proposed budget to increase policing of roads. The 
Commissioner emphasised the partnership working needed to deliver some of 
these outcomes. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

4.15 One member emphasised that this was a small percentage of incidents in regards 
to the overall population of Gloucestershire. He reiterated the importance of 
education with regards to the attitude of young people in a wider sense than just 
safety on the roads. 

4.16 One member stated that she believed the drink drive limit was out dated and not fit 
for purpose and that it should be at zero. There was further discussion around 
areas of concern from members including trials on widening cycle lanes, as well as 
types of education and providing support for elderly drivers. 

5. CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REPORT 

5.1 Paul Trott introduced the report which provided details on the actions of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner’s Office. 

5.2 One member asked a question regarding the underspend on the police salaries 
budget. In response it was explained that the actual underspend for the year would 
be minimal; it had been anticipated that once the precept had been raised in 
2018/19 it would take time to recruit officers so the additional income had been 
used cover short term projects. The Chief Constable explained that it took 22 
months to replace a police officer, and that they were seeing a different profile of 
candidate coming into the Force. The Constabulary was on target to recruit 90 
officers this year. 

5.3 Members noted the Tri-Force update within the report. It was explained that there 
had been a difference of views around fire arms officers, with Avon and Somerset 
and Wiltshire unable to come to an agreement around this. The Commissioner 
stated that the County had a strong fire arms response team.  The Chief Constable 
explained that there had been vacancies in fire arms capability in the past because 
there was a very high pass mark with regards to training and the role was very 
demanding. The capacity of the training centre was also a consideration. There was 
planned replacement for all the vacancies and those should be filled by the middle 
of 2019. One member asked for an update on the Tri-Force to a future panel 
meeting. 
ACTION Democratic Services

5.4 In response to details within the report on the Criminal Justice System, members 
were informed that the government had recognised the failures in the changes they 
had put in place around privatising part of the probation service. The contracts 
would be terminated early at the end of 2020 and there would be a change of 
approach. The Commissioner’s Office was working closely with the Ministry of 
Justice on this. The Commissioner explained that his office had opposed the initial 
changes. One member stated that this was an area that the Panel should be 
interested in and expressed concern about the underfunding of the courts. He 
suggested that an item be put on the agenda for the next meeting to better 
understand the context behind the changes to the Criminal Justice system and its 
impact. 
ACTION Democratic Services/ Martin Surl

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

6. PROPOSED GLOUCESTERSHIRE POLICE PRECEPT 2018/19 

6.1 The Police and Crime Commissioner introduced the report which proposed that:

Funding for the proposed £119.912m 2019/20 revenue budget would require a 
police related Band D Council Tax element of £250.49. This represented an 
increase of 10.6% in the police related Band D Council Tax or £24 for the year.

6.2 The Panel had received a briefing in January to ensure that members had the 
background to the budget and an understanding of the options available. The 
Commissioner set out the proposal outlining the work being carried out by the 
OPCC and the work on consulting with the public. He outlined the financial 
pressures nationally and that, aside from a small increase in the previous year, the 
police locally had not seen any increase in funding since 2010. The balance 
between local funding and national funding was now at about 50:50 with 
Gloucestershire receiving one of the smallest grants from national government.  He 
explained how the Constabulary had managed despite the financial pressures and 
the consequences of cuts. The Constabulary reserves had been used appropriately 
and not for the day to day running of the force. HMIC had commended the 
Constabulary on the way the reductions in funding had been managed.

6.3 It was the Commissioner’s assessment that the Constabulary remained strong, but 
he felt that the Constabulary was now facing a pivotal point, and that the strain was 
beginning to show. He felt that if the cuts were not reversed the Force would be 
weakened and not able to deliver the service the public expected. This was a 
planned approach to take any flexibility provided by central government with 
regards to funding. The Commissioner had lobbied MPs to support additional 
investment from government. 

6.4 The Commissioner explained that he had asked the Chief Constable to 
demonstrate how he would look to use any additional funding and how he had used 
the increase in funding he had received the previous year. The Chief Constable and 
his officers had provided this detail. For the proposals outlined by the Constabulary 
there would be a lead in time to see the benefits, in particular around the 
recruitment of officers. Members noted the detail in a letter from the Chief 
Constable on how the additional funding would be provided. This included funding 
alongside the priorities within the Police and Crime Plan. The Commissioner 
emphasised the funding for the multi-agency safeguarding hub noting its 
importance in providing a better service for young people. 

6.5 Referring to the previous presentation on Safe and Social Driving, the 
Commissioner outlined additional funding proposed in this area for roads policing 
and collision investigation.  In addition there was additional money proposed to 
support adults at risk and Safer Cyber, in particular the digital forensics unit.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

6.6 The Commissioner explained that performance in Gloucestershire around 999 calls 
was good but calls were increasing rapidly. In addition 101 calls were also 
increasing rapidly. 

6.7 The Commissioner summarised that it was a measured and fair budget with 
intelligent proposals from the Constabulary as to how additional funding would be 
used.

6.8 In support of the increase, a member explained that there was an opportunity to 
help relieve pressures on policing. It was recognised that once that funding was in 
the base budget it would be there year after year. If the option of not asking for an  
increase was taken then that weakened the argument back to central government 
around additional funding. One member outlined the shift towards local funding and 
raised concerns around council tax as a non-progressive form of taxation.  Concern 
was expressed around reductions in funding potentially leading to year on year 
increases in crime. 

6.9 In response to a question, the Commissioner explained there was no additional 
funding in the budget going to a review of fire service governance as that review 
was complete and a decision would be made in the coming weeks. He reminded 
members that he had received a grant from government to carry out much of that 
work.

6.10 One member noted the recruitment of police officers noting that with the current 
numbers in training that would bring the Constabulary up to the planned 
establishment. He referred to the letter from the Chief Constable noting the 
aspirations within the letter based on the additional funding spread across the 
priorities. It was stated that there was no explanation around how the increase 
would affect the establishment and how that would be spread across the areas. In 
response it was explained that there would be an additional 50 police officers and 
30 police staff. PCSOs would remain at the same level. There had been a planned 
increase in recruitment and the numbers should be up by the end of the financial 
year.

6.11 One member recognised that the budget could be balanced by a 2.5% increase 
and that with the core funding being one of the lowest, by increasing the precept it 
was putting the cost of policing on the public and the most vulnerable would be the 
hardest hit. He asked why the Commissioner wasn’t doing more to put pressure on 
central government. The Commissioner stated that this was not something he could 
change. There was a funding formula in place and commissioners had been 
lobbying to have that changed. It was understood that this would be considered as 
part of the Comprehensive Spending Review. The Commissioner stated that he had 
raised it on multiple occasions and was meeting with the Home Secretary. If the full 
amount wasn’t asked for, the Commissioner felt that the Constabulary would be 
weakened. It was not enough to just balance the budget, investment was needed. 

6.12 It was explained that the National Police Chiefs’ Council had made a full submission 
to Government on the issue of police funding.  There would be a planned 

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

communication approach to ensure communities understood about the reasons for 
the increase in precept. 

6.13 One member asked for a ‘strapline’ of what the public would get for the increase in 
the precept. The Commissioner explained that in meeting members of the public he 
felt that they understood the pressures on the police. He explained that the police 
would only see an increase in funding of the council tax element of spending which 
was around 50% of the budget and that from government they were receiving 
nothing. The member requested something from the Commissioner’s Office’s 
communication team to help communicate that message.

6.14 In response to a question on the precept in future years, the Commissioner 
explained that he did not want to see an increase of this nature next year.

6.15 One member explained that a number of the public would just be concerned with 
whether the Chief Constable had enough officers to do the job. The Chief 
Constable felt that the investment was needed in order to save the County further 
issues and the need for greater investment in the future. In addition, the member 
asked that there be more scrutiny of the Commissioner’s Fund to ensure the public 
understood how that money was used and whether it had good outcomes. The 
Commissioner stated that he welcomed the challenge.

6.16 The Chairman noted the previous year’s Commissioner’s Fund carry forward from 
the reserves. The Chief Finance Officer projected the carry-forward would reduce 
from around £700,000 to £500,000 in the following year. The commitment on 
projects was over a three year period and so the reserves would continue to come 
down. 

6.17 One member commented that it was for the Commissioner to justify the increase in 
the precept and for the Chief Constable to show how that money could be spent. 
He noted a growth in the office of the Commissioner and asked whether that money 
could have been used in a different way. In response it was explained that this 
related to additional work within the office and included a number of commissioning 
positions. There had also been the introduction of a part time post to consider 
complaints both of which would relieve police officers and staff of such work..

6.18 One member was concerned about the level of reserves noting the figures in the 
paper which outlined reserves in 2017 at 7% higher than the national average. The 
member expressed concern that central government might look at the levels of 
unused reserves in the future and use that as a reason to not provide funding. The 
Chief Finance Officer stated he would look to identify the Constabulary’s reserve 
figures compared to national figures for 2018.
ACTION Peter Skelton

6.19 In response to a question it was explained that there was a continuous programme 
of savings. There were areas that were being looked at but no decisions had been 
made. 2020/21 savings were higher because it was part of a transformation 
strategy which included ICT investment. 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

6.20 One member outlined the fact that funding decisions made by government had led 
to fewer police officers and less visible policing. He stated that this was the 
message to the public as to why the precept was required to be raised by 10.6%.

6.21 One member emphasised the increasing demand from cyber-crime and suggested 
that big technology companies should be contributing to funding rather than the 
burden being placed on those that found it hardest to pay. He was interested in the 
Commissioner’s view on the impact of technology and what he was doing to lobby 
on this issue. The Commissioner explained that technology was now in every part 
of policing. The Association of Police and Crime Commissioners met regularly and 
lobbied government that a proportion of funding should be coming from those 
companies. The Chief Constable outlined the complexities of cyber-crime and the 
particular skills required by the Constabulary. The Constabulary was working to 
adapt to respond to this. 

6.22 One member asked whether there was any money in the budget to help support the 
health and wellbeing of the staff. The Chief Constable explained that work was 
being carried out on a strategy for this so it was felt that sufficient resources were in 
place.. 

6.23 Following the discussion on the proposed 2019/20 budget and precept, the Panel 
were asked to decide whether they:

Supported the precept without qualification or comment
Supported the precept and make recommendations, or
Veto the proposed precept

It was Resolved that:

The proposed police precept for 2019/20 be supported with the following 
recommendation:

That the Panel supports the Police and Crime Commissioner in making 
representations to the Home Office and HM treasury seeking that a proportion 
of police funding is provided by the large technology companies in order to 
fund policing of Cyber Crime.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 13:20

Page 8



Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel 
15th March 2019 
 
 
 
Report of the Chief Executive 
 
This is my report to the Police and Crime Panel on the activities of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Office. It is intended to assist the Panel in reviewing and scrutinising decisions 
made and actions taken by the Commissioner, in accordance with its statutory responsibilities. 
 
 
1 Decisions 
 
1.1 The complete decision log may be viewed on the OPCC’s website here.   

 
1.2 A summary of decisions for up to the end of October 2018 has been presented to the Panel 

at previous meetings.  Table 1 below covers the period January – February 2019.   
 

Table 1: Summary of decisions recorded by the OPCC (January & February 2019) 

Month Reference  Subject Matter Decision 

Jan D02-2019 Audio Visual 
equipment 
upgrade 

In December 2017, the Planning for the Future Board 
approved a proposal from the Chief Information Officer 
to scope an approach to modernising the current 
Constabulary conference/display facilities incorporating 
HQ and the wider estate. This paper was approved and 
work has been ongoing to secure a supplier through 
SWPPD. 
 

This has been completed and a preferred supplier 

identified. Further work has been carried out and this 

report proposes a number of locations which will receive 

an IT refresh to allow effective presentation and 

videoconferencing facilities. 

 

The following recommendations were approved by the 

Commissioner: 

1 Note the scope of the proposed upgrade across 
Waterwells and the wider estate 

2 Approve the budget required for the upgrades – 
capital £240.5k to be allocated from ICT reserves 

3 Increase the ICT Annual Revenue budget by £5k, 
ICT will find £11.4k towards the support and 
maintenance from existing budgets. 

4 Note the governance of the funding and work 
prioritisation will lie with the Constabulary`s Digital 
Programme Board – chaired by the DCC. 

Feb D03-2019 Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
2019/20 to 
2022/23 
including  
2019/20 Budget 

Each year the Commissioner is required to determine 
his revenue and capital budgets for the coming financial 
year together with a Medium Term Financial Plan for the 
next four years.  Within the budget, the Commissioner 
must decide the level of the Police Council Tax precept 
that he will levy on Council Taxpayers in the coming 
financial year. 
 
The Commissioner is presented with a number of 
financial challenges including in particular a real terms 
reduction in central grant, rising salaries and other costs 
and increasing demands on and expectations of the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/the-office-that-supports-the-pcc/transparency/reports/decisions/


Table 1: Summary of decisions recorded by the OPCC (January & February 2019) 

Month Reference  Subject Matter Decision 

Constabulary together with a relaxation of previous 
limits on the amount by which the Commissioner is 
permitted (by central government) to increase the police 
share of Council Tax. 
 
It was agreed that funding for the proposed £119.9m 
revenue budget (see Annex A) will require a police 
related Band D Council Tax element of £250.49. This 
represents an increase of 10.6% on the police related 
Band D Council Tax or £24 for the year. 
 
In order to raise the required income for 2019/20 it was 
agreed that the Commissioner issues a precept on each 
District Council Collection Fund as set out at paragraph 
18.2 of the Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 
2022/23. 

Feb D04/2019 GFRS 
Governance 
Review 

In September 2018, the PCC announced his decision to 
reopen analysis into the benefits and risks of a change 
in governance for Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service (GFRS).  This is in line with Part One of the 
Policing and Crime Act 2017.  The Act includes 
provisions that enable Police and Crime Commissioners 
to take on responsibility for the governance of Fire and 
Rescue Services in their area, where a case is made.   
 
Following the publication of a draft business case 
proposing a change in governance on 07/11/18, 
members of the public and stakeholders were given the 
opportunity to share their views and feedback.  The draft 
business case has been subsequently reviewed to 
reflect the views shared during the consultation phase. 
 
Following completion of the final business case, the 
APAC²E guidance: Police and Fire Business Case – 
Guidance for OPCC Chief Executives states that: “If the 
PCC wishes to proceed with their proposal having taken 
into account consultation responses, they will submit a 
final business case to the Secretary of State. The 
Secretary of State will then be required to consider 
whether the proposed transfer is in the interests of 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness, or public safety” 
(page 11). 
 
The recommendation, approved by the Commissioner, 
was for the PCC to submit the final business case: The 
case for changing Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service governance: Moving forward together for a safer 
Gloucestershire to the Home Secretary.   

 
 
2 Freedom of Information Act and complaints (01 January – 28 February 2018) 
 
2.1 In the 2 month period up to the end of February 2019, the OPCC has received 8 Freedom 

of Information (FOI) requests.  This compares to 10 in the same period last year (-20%). 
  

Page 10

file:///C:/Users/243195/Downloads/apace%20police%20fire%20business%20case%20guidance%20-%20revised%2013%2002%202017.pdf
file:///C:/Users/243195/Downloads/apace%20police%20fire%20business%20case%20guidance%20-%20revised%2013%2002%202017.pdf


 
 

2.2 Of the FOI requests made to the OPCC during this period, one was redirected to the 
Constabulary (as the request related to information held by the Force), and the remaining 
seven were for OPCC held information.  In all, a total of 21 questions have been asked 
requiring an OPCC response.  
  

2.3 The chart below provides an overview of FOI applicants by type (all FOI requests received).  
As the period only relates to two months and eight FOI requests, analysis is limited 
however, the chart shows 63% (5) FOIs were ‘personal’ applicants and 37% (3) were from 
companies. 

 

 
 

2.4 51 complaints were made to the OPCC in the period January and February 2019 from 
members of the public.  This represents an 8.5% increase (4) compared to the same period 
in 2018.   
 
 

Page 11



 

 
 

2.5 The chart above shows the percentage of complaints received by area.  Figures for 2019 
are for January and February only and for full calendar years for 2013-2018.  This shows 
that the majority of complaints received so far this year are from residents in Gloucester 
(31% / 16), followed by the Cotswolds (14% / 9) and Cheltenham (14% / 7).  This pattern in 
similar for previous years.  
  

2.6 Table 2 below outlines complaint types by area in January and February 2019 (excluding 
those from outside of the area or unknown).  Complaints received by the OPCC are broadly 
categorised and include a wide range of issues to facilitate analysis for this report.   
 

Table 2: Complaints received by the OPCC by area and type from Jan-Feb 2019 
Complaint Type Chelt. Cots. FoD Gloucester Stroud Tewkes. Total  

ASB report 1 1 2 4 1 1 10 

Crime report  1 1 0 0 1 3 

Road safety issue 1  1 0 1 0 3 

Police service / 
presence 

4 7 1 8 4 0 24 

OPCC complaint 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 

OPCC complaint 
relating to GFRS 
governance debate 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 1 0 0 2 0 0 3 

 

Page 12



2.7 Table 2 shows that the greatest number of complaints received by the OPCC are 
categorised as police service / presence followed by reports of anti-social behaviour and 
road safety issues.  The OPCC complaints relate to dissatisfaction with the precept 
increase earlier this year.  Again this mirrors the distribution of complaints by theme 
presented at previous Police and Crime Panels.   
 

2.8 So far this calendar year, the Independent Appeals Officer had received nine complaint 
appeals.     
 
 

3 Crime data 
 
3.1 As explained in previous reports, the OPCC is able to compare national and local crime 

rates via various Home Office performance management tools.  Unfortunately, due to the 
conditions of use we are unable to share the full content publicly but the table below 
provides information about how Gloucestershire is performing when compared to the 
national picture.  The data we are using refers to the British Crime Survey (BCS) 
Comparator Crimes and were chosen because they represented those crimes that 
(according to the Crime Survey) caused the most amount of harm to communities. The 
most recent data available is up to the end of December 2018. 
 

3.2 Table 3 below shows that BCS crime rates in Gloucestershire continue to fall in 
Gloucestershire in line with peer groups.   Rates and percentage changes mirror those 
reported at the last Police and Crime Panel (February) where across the districts BCS 
crime is falling with the exception of Stroud and Gloucester.     
 

3.3 As with the previous report, rates in all areas are lower than the MSG average although 
both Gloucester and Cheltenham are closer to the average than the other areas.  This is 
reflected in their MSG position.   The Forest of Dean and Tewkesbury are showing the 
greatest decreases and both are performing well in relation to rates in their MSGs.    

       
Table 3: BCS Crime in the 12 month period up to the end of December 2018 

Area 
MSG position 

out of 15  
(1 = good) 

Rate per 1000 population 
Percentage change 

compared to the same 
period last year 

Gloucestershire 
(out of 8) 

2 
27.538 

(MSG average 31.532) 
-1% 

Cheltenham 7 
38.13 

(MSG average 40.988) 
-7% 

Cotswolds 2 
16.284 

(MSG average 22.049) 
-6% 

Forest of Dean 1 
16.497 

(MSG average 24.762) 
-16% 

Gloucester 8 
47.047 

(MSG average 49.629) 
+10% 

Stroud 1 
 18.657 

(MSG average 24.616) 
+5% 

Tewkesbury 2 
 18.952 

(MSG average 25.952) 
-9% 

    

South West N/A 32.0 -0.97% 

MSG for 
Gloucestershire 

N/A 31.3 -1.3% 

England & Wales N/A 41.0 +1.09% 

 
3.4 As explained BCS crimes are those that, when asked via the British Crime Survey, 

respondents said are the crimes that concern people the most.  These are also volume 
crimes.  All crime relates to all offences reported to the police.  The table below provides 
the same information as above but for All Crime. 

Page 13



 
Table 4: All Crime in the 12 month period up to the end of December 2018 

Area 
MSG position 

out of 15  
(1 = good) 

Rate per 1000 population 
Percentage change 

compared to the same 
period last year 

Gloucestershire 
(out of 8) 

2 
56.185 

(MSG average 62.527) 
+3% 

Cheltenham 5 
75.772 

(MSG average 84.360) 
+1% 

Cotswolds 3 
38.419 

(MSG average 47.086) 
+4% 

Forest of Dean 1 
33.272 

(MSG average 53.520) 
-13% 

Gloucester 5 
92.723 

(MSG average 102.295) 
+11% 

Stroud 2 
39.702 

(MSG average 52.334) 
+2% 

Tewkesbury 1 
39.144 

(MSG average 55.243) 
-1% 

    

South West N/A 67.2 +0.94% 

MSG for 
Gloucestershire 

N/A 64.2 +1.84% 

England & Wales N/A 86.6 +7.09% 

 
3.5 As reported in recent media, crime has increased nationally and, in line with this, crime has 

also increased in Gloucestershire.  MSG positions show that crime rates remain low in the 
county despite these increases.  All districts are on or below the lower bound averages for 
their Most Similar Groups as shown in the two examples below: 
 

 
 

 
3.6 Crime trends and performance are continually monitored by the Policy Officers in the OPCC 

in order that the PCC is able to hold the Chief Constable to account in accordance with his 
statutory responsibilities. 
 

3.7 For more information about crime rates by area, please go to www.police.co.uk. This is 
publically available data from the Home Office that shows, through charts and maps, how 
Gloucestershire Constabulary is performing and includes analysis by crime type. 

 
 
4 Commissioner’s Fund 
 
4.1 As reported in November 2017, the Commissioning Team introduced a new application 

process recently with the aim of facilitating the application process.  The process is 
summarised below: 
 

Page 14

http://www.police.co.uk/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=650&MId=8551&Ver=4


 
 

4.2 The timeline for the most recent funding round is available on the OPCC website.  Unlike 
previous years, funding has been capped at £5,000 per annum per project. Due to the 2020 
PCC elections, applicants are able to apply for up to a maximum of two years funding.  
 

4.3 55 pre-qualification questionnaires have been submitted to the OPCC and, of those, 40 
have been approved, 14 not approved and one application was not progressed by the 
applicant.    
 

4.4 Out of the 40 eligible to apply for funding only 33 submitted full applications. Based on 
panel recommendations it is likely that we will fully or partially fund 30 of these, however the 
final decision will be made by the Commissioner during this month.  

 
 

5 Estates update 
 

6.1 No further update 
 
 

6 OPCC Staff update 
 

7.1 Since the last report, one member of staff as commenced maternity leave. 
 
 

Paul D. Trott 
Chief Executive 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Gloucestershire 
March 2019 

Page 15

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/funding-commissioning-opportunities/commissioners-fund-grants/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

   
 

POLICE AND CRIME PLAN PRIORITIES  -  QUARTERLY HIGHLIGHT REPORT  
 

1. Aims and Priorities 

 

The Police and Crime Commissioner’s aim is that the Police and Crime Plan will be delivered 
through the inclusion and involvement of the many partnerships and communities in 
Gloucestershire with the aim of making it a safer place in which to live and work. 
 

The Police and Crime Plan is being delivered through: 
 

 Priority 1 – Accessibility and accountability (AA)  

 Priority 2 – Older but not overlooked (OBNO)  

 Priority 3 – Young people becoming adults (YPBA)  

 Priority 4 – Safe days and nights for all (SDAN)  

 Priority 5 – Safe and social driving (SSD)  

 Priority 6 – Safer cyber (SC)  

 Priority 7 – A compassionate approach (CA)  
 

Delivery plans for the above priorities will be continually developed throughout the period of the 
Police and Crime Plan 2017 to 2021 and will aim to deliver value for money. 
 

The purpose of the Police and Crime Plan Priorities Quarterly Highlight Report is to provide all 
stakeholders with an update that monitors progress in respect of each of the priorities, to 
include: 

 activities achieved during the current quarter; 

 activities expected during the next quarter; 

 any risks or issues identified will be managed through the risk and issue registers; 

 overview of budget 

 
 

This report is a summary against activities. Members should note that this information is 
retrospective for the reporting quarter mentioned; as such it is an executive summary.  Due to 
report production timescales, information and updates may have since been superseded and 
will be updated in future reports. 

Report Number 19 

Report Period October  2018 – December 2019 

Author Richard Bradley   

To Police and Crime Commissioner 

Version V1.0  

Date 24 January 2019  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

2 

 

2. Quarterly update on progress for period  

 

 
Accessibility and accountability 
 
Intent:  
To get the right resources to the right situation or problem first time, every time, on time and dealing 
with the matter appropriately and effectively 
To realise the ideal of the local officer working in and with the communities of Gloucestershire 
 

 
1 

 
Force Control Room 
A new dispatch exercise to feed public engagement is in process of assessment by the Communication 
and Engagement prior to roll out to Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner (OPCC) & Public – 
ambition is help inform decisions over self-service and deploying resources. Surveys and call backs are 
being established as part of performance processes and include reinvigoration of mystery shopper (6.4 - 
Accessibility & Accountability Delivery Plan). 
 

 Hosting 250 visitors to Force Control Room (FCR) to improve awareness – over 2000 visitors hosted 
(6.5) 

 New collaborative forum with Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue service  (ambo invited) to look at control 
training, Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Principles (JESIP), and opportunities (6.6/6.7) 

 Force Control room – performance and process update (6.1/6.2/6.3) 
 
In last quarter 999 calls were answered on average within: 

 October – 15 seconds 

 November – 15 seconds 

 December – 9 seconds 
 
This is a significant improvement on previous year/previous quarter and is trending downwards: 

 Performance dashboard now in place and performance information by team. Next steps include live 
time performance data visualisation to room in line with ‘nudge theory’ 

 Alternative Working Request (AWR) and shift pattern to improve resourcing against demand show 
benefits from Jan 2019 

 Workforce strategy continues to improve grip of capability and attendance with supervisors 
commenting positively (supported by Human Resources) 

 Front office reception staff supporting emails and to be trained as call handlers (ongoing aim Spring 
2019) 

Page 18



 

3 

 

In last quarter 101 calls were answered on average within: 
October – 4 mins 56 seconds 
November – 4 mins 39 seconds 
December – 2 mins 55 seconds 

This is a slight improvement in wait times from last quarter. We have still prioritised 999 calls. Taken 
against industry standards does not necessarily indicate cause for concern (no national target) – but is 
subject to further review and an understanding of what is the aim. Improvements to our (Interactive 
Voice Response (IVR) system and the introduction of Single Online Home through 2019 are expected to 
channel demand more effectively 
 
Supporting infrastructure changes: 

 Airwave channels reduced from 3 to 2 to maximise staff – review Summer 2019 

 Review of airwave speak standards ongoing 

 Performance dashboard build complete  

 Awareness of mobility device capability being improved 
 

 Force Operating State embedded in Force Process – structure to adapt in response to demand. A 
new Forecasting and Planning Meeting is set to plan using predictive analytics against an 18 month 
rolling horizon – improving our flex and response to higher demand periods. 

 Reception staff now under Force Contact Portfolio and infrastructure to bring consistency to contact 
management and maximise resource 

 Working Group exploring Diary Station Based appointments 

 Feedback and Service recovery function now under Contact – to standardise and process manage 
messages of thanks & dissatisfaction plus capture learning themes. 

 People - Leadership & Away Days booked quarterly with Force Incident Managers (FIMS) to discuss 
best practice and barriers. Now joined with  Force Response Unit (FRU) leaders and front line staff to 
build relationships and shared problem solving around despatch/resourcing incidents 

 
 

2 Citizens in Policing update (3.1/3.2/3.3) 

Special Constabulary (SC) 

Duty Hours / Numbers  

 
Operational – 134 
Non-Operational – 13 
SC in Training – 19 

Page 19



 

4 

Non Active SC – 2 
Total SC – 168  
 

Recruitment 

 
Fitness tests and vetting are taking place in the next two months for 
the next SC intake in March.  There are currently 19 people with 
applications to join as Special Constables in March 2019 and 1 SC 
about to transfer from Metropolitan Police. 
 
We have received 24 Expressions of interest to join the Special 
Constabulary.  

Upcoming Events  

 

 17th Jan – Licencing Operation  

 20th Jan – Cheltenham Cruisers  

Other 

 
In the process of issuing certificates for Special Constables who 
completed over 600 hours of volunteering last year.  
 

Police Cadets  

Duty Hours / Numbers 

 
December 2018  
Cadets: 262 hours  
Cadet Leaders: 59 hours  
 
78 Cadets / 40 Leaders = Total 118  
 
30 interested in becoming a police cadet  
July – December 2018 Cadets Completed 3867 hours  
 

Recruitment 
 
n/a  
 

Upcoming Events  
 
17th Jan – Visit Echoes Youth Club  
 

 
Wednesday Sessions 

 

 
Treasure Seekers Cadets attended their first Wednesday – positive 
feedback from leaders and the cadets themselves.  
 
This Weeks Wednesday Sessions:  
- Community Alerts (Tesco Quedgeley)  
- Sign Language (Part 1)  
- Cyber Safe / Positive Digital Footprint 
 

 
Cadet Leaders  

 

 
- Paul Trott attended his first Wednesday session  
- New unit leader Fiona Webb had her first session of the year at 
Stroud 
  

Page 20



 

5 

Feedback 
 
n/a  
 

Other 

 

 Currently looking at filling the Wednesday sessions for all three 
cadet units until April/May – open to any suggestions (2 hours 
every Wednesday)   

 Ben Rollins is currently looking at the Police Cadet Page on the 
Gloucestershire Constabulary Website updating and editing the 
context  

 Community alerts is also currently being organised as an extra 
weekly activity. A small number of cadets will be going to various 
areas promoting community alerts and neighbourhood watch.  
 

Police Support Volunteers (PSVs) 
 

Duty Hours / Numbers 
 
n/a  
 

Recruitment 

 
The recruitment process is just starting with regard to the new role of 
“Volunteer Bike Safe Ride-Out Observer”. (We hope to recruit at least 
6 volunteers into a pool of PSVs for this role, should they be 
forthcoming). 
 
We are looking to fill a role in Data Protection (which we created in 
2016) from one of our Expressions of Interest. This role has been 
inactive since spring 2018, when the volunteer undertaking it was 
actually recruited into a paid job within the department following a 
successful spell as a PSV. I have reminded DP that this role has been 
approved and I could help them to fill it, should they have the 
capacity. 
 
A new role within Crime and Harm Reduction Team (CHRT) will be 
drafted this week. Details to follow in next week’s report.   
 

Current Volunteers  

 
The SARA Search Managers are progressing through vetting and I 
am liaising with the stragglers to get their identities verified, vetting 
forms in and processed. 
 
The next intake of Student Researchers have been recruited and they 
are going through vetting currently. This year’s cohort are working 
within the CHRT area of business.  
 

In Progress  

 
The Christmas cards with a Thank You message were sent out to all 
Volunteers (including our members of staff who also give their time as 
volunteers) and were very well received. 
A new role within CHRT will be drafted this week. Details to follow in 
next week’s report.   

 

Page 21



 

6 

 
3 

 
Cadets (3.1/3.2/3.3 & 4.1) 
 
The last months of 2018 were rather busy for all of the cadets and our leaders. 
 
Link to Neighbourhood Policing 

 Our operational unit based out of Waterwells deployed across the county assisting on several 
neighbourhoods policing time based deployments. These deployments have ranged from giving 
advice about securing vehicles to deploying in plain clothes to assist with preventing ASB on 
Halloween. 

 During the Halloween operation Cadet Section Officer George Stevenson spotted a strange male on 
the high street Tredworth. The below email is from the operational commander that night and 
explains what happened: 

 
On Wednesday 31 October 2018 (as every year) it was Halloween. The Gloucester 
Neighbourhood Policing Team (NPT) had a dedicated operation involving the NPT, Solace 
 
 and our own Cadets. The cadets were supporting the operation through being a mobile set of 
eyes and ears to identify potential troublesome groups and areas where there were potential 
problems.  
 
Cadet Deputy Section Officer George Stevenson was one of the cadets that were mobile in the 
area of Barton.  Although his focus was on spotting groups of potential problem trick or treaters 
he had his ‘Special Looking Eyes’ in when he noticed a male sprinting down Barton Street with 
what looked like a handbag. He notified PCSO Adam Stevens who he was with and he also 
noted what shop the male had gone into.  The policing team responded immediately as the male 
came out of the shop and began sprinting away again with the handbag. He was stopped by the 
NPT and the male had to be restrained and arrested. 
 
It transpired that the bag belonged to his girlfriend and he had been sent down to the shops by 
her to buy something. He did receive a Penalty Notice for Disorder (PND) for public order 
offences as a result of his conduct on being stopped. Although the bag was not stolen this was 
an excellent spot by George and one that could potentially have led to a great arrest and 
apprehension of an offender.  
 
Thank you George for your help on the night and supporting the cadets week in week out. 
Organisational training and support! 

 

 November 10th 2018 saw a terrorist attack at the old nuclear power station in Berkeley; luckily it was 
only a test of response for our colleagues in Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) and 
South Western Ambulance Service Trust (SWAST). The cadets provided over 120 role players, both 
cadets and parents, who endured a rain soaked day. As role players we had both adults and cadets 
made up with various wounds and briefed to “ham it up” as much as they can. The day was a roaring 
success from our point of view with lots of smiling faces and budding Oscar nominees. A special 
mention to the cadet who was briefed to “die” after 10 minutes of being shot. She came to the 
evacuation point still breathing and proceeded to “die” in a very dramatic way in front of a rather 
surprised medic after pointing out it had been 20 mins since receiving her gunshot wound, a definite 
Oscar. 

 November 11th and the cadets were on parade to pay their respects to the fallen at the County 
Remembrance parade, 64 cadets and leaders were on parade at the Gloucester City war memorial, 
one of the largest contingencies on parade. The same cadets then paraded through the city with the 

Page 22



 

7 

Force standard flying proudly. We then had the privilege of assisting the outgoing Lord Lieutenant, 
Dame Janet Trotter, with her service of remembrance at the Cathedral. Eight cadets assisted seat 
the great and good of the county along with cadets from other organisations such as the Fire, Army, 
Sea and Air cadets. 

 
Reward and Recognition 

 Two of our Cadets were awarded Impact awards in December with Deputy Cadet Section Officer 
Steven Rogers being awarded a Chief Constables community service award, his citation is below: 

 
Steven joined the Police Cadets in May, 2016. He was a shy and retiring individual who was 
always keen to be involved, but never pushed himself forward. It was plain to see that Steven 
wanted a career in the police and was going to do anything he could to achieve that. While 
recognising he was shy, he was asked at interview what the cadets could do for him. His answer 
was to build his self-confidence. Two years later, Steven is not only an amazing young man and 
a huge asset to the Constabulary cadet programme, he is full of self-confidence! He is always 
ready to deploy at a moment’s notice and is always the first to volunteer for any duty no matter 
what it is. 
 
On 30 July, Steven was in the Co-op store in Stonehouse, where he saw a man and woman 
putting steak into a bag. He watched them leave the store, gave descriptions to the police and 
followed them along the canal path. The offenders ran off and dropped the bag of goods, which 
was worth around £50. Steven did not tell the police officer he was a police cadet, but the shop 
manager did. When cadet leaders found out what had happened and spoke to Steven, he told 
them he didn’t go into the underpass as he didn’t fancy being thrown in the canal! Steven was 
very polite and very brave to run after the offenders and through his actions he got the goods 
back to the store. All his leaders are very proud of him. 

 

 December saw the cadets in one of their busiest months. We had the Treasure seeker events where 
we had the opportunity to introduce our new Treasure Seeker cadets. At the moment we have four 
cadets with a plan to expand it in 2019. These cadets are now part of our operational unit and will be 
out on operations along with our existing cadets on Wednesday evenings. 
 
The plan for this is that when our younger cadets are at school the Treasure seeker cadets can be 
out and about doing the day visiting sheltered accommodations , coffee mornings to name but a few . 

 

 Next the cadets were on parade for the Force carol service held this year in the beautiful Tewkesbury 
Abbey. Along with our colleagues from the Fire cadets we assisted in seating people and then 
providing a guard of honour as our guests left, providing a lighted pathway from the Abbey to the 
refreshments. We also managed to provide the reindeers at no cost to the Constabulary. 
 

 And last but not least saw the end of year cadet award ceremony. These awards are a mixture of 
internal awards and external presentations. We were again happy to welcome along the 
constabulary band who supported us with our march in and also with some festive mood music 
before and after the awards. Guests to the event included the High Sheriff, Charles Martell and Sir 
Dusty Miller from the Honourable Company of Gloucestershire, not forgetting our Deputy Chief 
Constable, the deputy Police and Crime Commissioner and Chief Officer Special Constabulary David 
Pederick-Friend. The night saw 30 cadets awarded their certificates for passing their recruit training, 
cadet promotions to Deputy Section, Section Officer and our two new Senior Cadets. We also had 
presentations by Sir Dusty Miller on behalf of the Honourable Company of Gloucestershire to the 
best unit of the year and also the most outstanding cadet, presented to newly promoted Cadet 
Deputy Section officer Steven Rogers. Other awards that were presented were: The Cadet 

Page 23



 

8 

Leadership and Engagement Award, The Leaders Choice Award, Cadet of the year and The Cadet 
Coordinator for Gloucestershire Police Award.  
 

 On a final note we have had yet another cadet offered a place within a Constabulary. Emily Lane has 
been offered a place on the Avon and Somerset three year apprenticeship scheme, but has not 
accepted it yet as she has an interview with Gloucestershire on 28 January 2019. 

 

 
4 Special Constabulary (2.1 -2.12) 

 

Special Constable Numbers As of 10th January 2019 

Active 133 

LOA 3 

Non-Operational 31 (17 still in training) 

TOTAL  167 

Independent Patrol 61 

Non-Independent Patrol 106  

Non-Operational would mean Officer Safety Training expired, Injured or still in Induction Training 
Issue with ratio of IPS to Non-IPS 

 
Total number of Hours for 2018  

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jun 

3,099 2,823 3,887 2,965 3,090 3,310 3,310 

 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TOTAL 2018 

3,679 3,095 3,288 3,313 3,639 3,600 39,796 

 
Operational Progress 
Force Response Unit / Neighbourhood Policing  
This is seen as Business as usual, a lot of hours go into supporting Force Response Unit FRU and NHP 
either with Time Based Tasking (TBT) or just double crewing response vehicles.  
 
Special Constabulary attached to Child Abuse Investigation Team (CAIT) (Officer in Charge DS 
Sheppard) 

Page 24



 

9 

Following a process we have four SCs who have been successful in an attachment to the Public 
Protection Unit (PPU) Team.  
 
Op Initial (21/12/2018)  
Op INITIAL saw 13 non-independent officers on their first duty as a warranted officer work alongside 1 
Special Inspector, 3 Special Sergeants, 5 Special Constables,  1 Regular Sergeant and 3 Regular PC’s 
Also in attendance was Stroud MP David Drew and a local parish councillor. The officers worked over 3 
areas, Gloucester, Cheltenham and Stroud Policing the Night Time Economy (NTE). The feedback 
provided by the officers is that they rated the event on average 4.5 out of 5 and the only developmental 
feedback was the weather, although unfortunately that is even out of our control! 
 
Night Time Economy (NTE) – Dedicated Team  
2018 formed several months of planning with CI Roddy Godsen which will see 2019 being an exciting 
Time for SCs supporting the NTE in Gloucester and Cheltenham on weekends.  

December 2018 NTE 

 Over 200 Hours supporting Streetsafe (Glos / Chelt)  

 SC Officers supported every Streetsafe shift except one in December 

 SC Officers worked until 5am New Year’s Eve, supporting PS Firth & Izatt) 
 

Op Indemnis was Launched on 1 November 2018: 

 Vehicle collected and in workshops (cost 20k less that budget due to ex demo deal).  

 Large Media Launch in November with Local TV, Radio and national press coverage.  

 Full Operational Order produced  

 Fast Roads Training delivered by Avon & Somerset  

 Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) working  very well  

 Number of good work reports (see November / December results).   

 

Police Managed Car Enthusiast Event - Sunday 4 November 2018  
First ever event in the Country, whereby the Police/Special Constabulary supported Insp Jason Keates 
and his team in running and arranging a police managed Cruise at the Hempstead location. The SC 
provided ANPR and manpower to engage with young people promoting safe and social driving. Very 
positive feedback from everyone who attended, including positive social media comments from the 
Cruise organisers and those who attended.  
 
Types of Events SCs have been involved in since October 2018 to date:  
University of Gloucestershire – Special Constabulary Research Project  
University of Gloucestershire criminology students will be carrying out some research on the Special 
Constabulary locally. Dr Ian Britton from University of Northampton, Institute for Public Safety Crime and 
Justice is providing some support to the Students.   
 
Time Based Tasking (TBT)  
Time Based Tasking App has been developed in house, every two weeks at the NHP Tasking meeting 
TBT is decided, and then entered onto the App where PCSOs, PCs and SCs can add actions. Dr Ian 
Britton has come into Gloucestershire and has the TBT App has attracted a lot of attention as best 
practice.  

 
5 Neighbourhood (7 & 9) 

Continued investment in and delivery of rural based policing, supporting local communities and ensuring 
engagement, activity and understanding of our work. Recognised by National Farmers Union (NFU) as 

Page 25



 

10 

per below letter  
 

20181219162859622
_0001.pdf  

 
NFU, their Vice-President, Stuart Roberts, County advisor William Frazer and the County Chair Graham 
Nichols. 
 
Mr Roberts organised the meeting to see what Glos Pol are doing to tackle rural and wildlife crime and 
how their rural communities are being helped. We discussed, work across the county, the new Rural 
Crime Team, training control room staff, our support team for the RECLOs (Rural and Environmental 
Crime Liaison Officer), trench digging, WhatsApp, trigger plans and so on. 
 
Mr Roberts was quite open in saying he wasn’t expecting much from Gloucestershire Police and almost 
had a negative preconception of how we would be dealing with rural crime. However at the end of the 
meeting he stated ‘’I visit a high number of police forces and I can safely say Gloucestershire is by far 
doing far more than any other police force’’ He went on to state that from our good work and positive 
results it is clear that the officers on the ground are been given the support and drive from the senior 
management team and crime commissioner.  
 
I hope this is welcome news from such a prominent and influential organisation,  
 
PC 2249 Ashley Weller 
Cotswold Wildlife Crime Officer (Rural Crime Team) 
 
Drone development (7 – 9 and 3.1.) 
Ongoing work scoping the availability and implementation of drones to Gloucestershire Constabulary. 
Supporting critical work in our rural neighbourhoods, missing people, patrols and more.  
 
Attendance at and learning from  National Hunting and Badger conference 23.11.2018: 

 Managing protest 

 League against cruel sports  

 Wildlife Crime Officers (Dorset and Devon &Cornwall ) 

 Countryside Alliance – Philip Davies Police Liaison 

 Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) – Gareth Evans DCCP Wales and RECLO champion 

 Animal rights and criminality – CTIU (Counter Terrorism Intelligence Unit) 

 DEFRA (Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs) – Badger Cull 

 NWCU (National Wildlife Crime Unit) – Craig Fellows 

 Hunting national guidance- National trends, analysis and problem profile            

 Policing the cull – Supt Devon & Cornwall  

 
6 

 
Prevention – Trauma Informed and ACEs Conference Nov 2018 

Supported by CI Tim Wood and ACC Moss the first Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) Conference 
was held in the County, bringing together local communities, voluntary and statutory agencies.  
 
The conference summary report is now available to download on our website. Not only is it a great 
reminder of the day, it's also a useful tool for sharing with colleagues. Download it here: 

Page 26

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/4395/nfu-letter.pdf


 

11 

https://www.actionaces.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/More-than-ACEs-conference-2018_Final-
Report.pdf 
 
Don't forget that there are two more planned screenings of the Resilience documentary in January and 
February and you can book through Eventbrite.  
Find out more at https://www.actionaces.org/resilience-film-screenings/ 
 
Regards 
Action on ACEs Gloucestershire 
 

 
 

Accessibility and accountability – planned activities in next quarter 
 

Force Control Room 

 FINESSE call management software to launch April 2019 and will articulate performance per handler and 
capacity – some delay down to providers. This will also allow more dynamic control of the room and 
functions within – as well as individual performance.  

 

 Single Online Home is commencing launch June 2019 for full go live January 2020. This will deliver online 
reporting and signposting for numerous issues and represents a significant uplift in online offer. 

Future options include potential webchat. Webchat and social media engagement are being scoped with 
other forces. Impacts of this have included a surge in vulnerable individuals engaging with police via 
webchat and necessitating an emergency response to a concern for welfare.  
 

 Bid for Triage Sgts to improve PRIORITISATION & DEMAND CONTROL 
Sergeant working 24/7 in FCR to arbitrate incident allocation, review incident grading's against demand, 
maximize opportunities for resolution at source & improve management of public expectations – public will 
be given different messaging at point of non-emergency incident grading - that incident will be reviewed 
against force demand and they may receive further contact if we seek to address differently in light of 
demand pressures.  
 

 Reception staff review re Cheltenham and Head Quarters 
 

 Development of Customer Service and Care offer 
 
Special Constabulary  

 19 January 2019 there will be date that we develop and train up the role players who will support training 
delivery on policing the Night Time Economy (NTE).  
 

 On 2 & 16 February 2019 we train the Special Constables in NTE. This will be followed by a rollout on live 
NTE duties. BBC Points West have registered an interest in filming this model. 

 
4 Scenarios based on: 
- Public order incident 
- Assault 
- Issuing a S.35 dispersal order 
- Searching a suspect 
 
 

Page 27

https://www.actionaces.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/More-than-ACEs-conference-2018_Final-Report.pdf
https://www.actionaces.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/More-than-ACEs-conference-2018_Final-Report.pdf
https://www.actionaces.org/resilience-film-screenings/


 

12 

 
Accessibility and Accountability – Good News Stories  
 

November - The Commonwealth Heads Of Government Meeting (CHOGM) Wreath Challenge was a truly 
significant activity for the Aston Project, with the young people of all areas of the project, taking an active part 
to produce what I’m sure you will agree, is a distinguished / unique and very colourful wreath. 
 

 
 
The wreath was also displayed at the National Army Museum in London. 
 

 
 
Reward and recognition across the priorities! 
Senior Cadet Lucy Owen received the Police and Crime Commissioners young spotlight award, her citation 
read: 

(Lucy) recently sat her A Levels at Stroud High School. Her particular interests are politics and economics, 
but it is Lucy’s extracurricular activities that see her contributing so much not only to the local community in 
Stroud, but also further afield. Feminism and gender equality for all are Lucy’s main interests. Her dedication 
meant she was chosen to be part of a school trip to the United Nations, where she gave a speech on gender 
equality and the importance of educating her generation. 
 
This ignited her passion so much, that Lucy came home and set up a local branch of the National Alliance for 

Page 28



 

13 

Women’s Organisations (NAWO), which focuses on youth and women’s equality. She also became a UN 
Ambassador! Lucy founded FemSoc at Stroud High which is a feminist society, which aims to give 
presentations, raise awareness of feminist issues on local, national and global scales and raises funds for 
gender equality. Currently, the FemSoc is trying to raise money for the only remaining women’s refuge in the 
county. Lucy is also a member of the European Youth Parliament and regularly debates on equality issues. 
She would like to eventually go into law. In her little bit of spare time, Lucy is a gymnastics coach, who is 
already inspiring a whole new generation. Lucy also finds time to be a police cadet, and has been since the 
cadets began in the county in 2014. Lucy has been a fantastic ambassador for the Constabulary, going out 
on numerous deployments and making a difference to the communities it serves. She is a reliable and 
responsible member of the team, who is frequently given positions of leadership and difficult tasks, in which 
she always gives 100%.  
 
Police Cadet Coordinator, Tracy Wren, said: “Lucy has grown so much since she joined the cadets and has 
become a real star within the programme, culminating in obtaining the position of High Sheriff Cadet for 
Gloucestershire. “It has been a pleasure and a privilege to have Lucy as part of the cadet programme and I 
only wish I had a dozen more of her“. Now based in Nottingham for University, Lucy is hoping to apply to be a 
Cadet Leader there. 
 
Lucy is receiving this award to recognise the Police and Crime Plan priority ‘Young people becoming adults’. 
She is a true role model of her generation and the Constabulary has been fortunate enough to benefit from 
her inspiring work. 
 
Neighbourhood 
Working in partnership with the Environment Agency - a substantial fine was issued to an offender dealt with 
in Gloucester for fisheries offences during a joint patrol including Environment Agency Fisheries Enforcement 
Officers, Gloucestershire Constabulary and Angling Trust (Voluntary Bailiff Service) VBS. The matter was 
aggravated by the subject being aggressive in his attitude towards fisheries officers and being in possession 
of a machete, but was resolved safely by the intervention of PC Mawdsley. It is an excellent example of the 
value of Operation Leviathan as a multi-agency working partnership towards tackling illegal fishing and fish 
theft. 
 
Both West Mercia and Gloucestershire Police colleagues formed part of a series of joint patrols involving both 
forces this Summer. 
 
Pro-active work and impact from our PCSO and NH officers: 
PCSO Liz Ward was on early patrols in relation to incidents 110/11 OCT and 292/8, looking for a male 
matching the description of one that had been approaching young girls and attempting to lure them to a 
vehicle. She identified from speaking to locals a male matching the description and found him in the area this 
morning If ever someone embodied the Mission statement of ‘keeping you safe from harm’- this is exactly it. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

14 

 
Older but not overlooked 
 
Intent:  
That older people need to feel and remain an active part of our communities whether they live in their 
own homes or are in residential care 
Both should be part of the police beat with the local officer being visible and proactive with all 
vulnerable groups.  
 

 
1 

 
Gloucester Older People’s Association 
This organisation has carried out a series of events and attended events throughout the County 
delivering information leaflets from Police, Fire, and Age UK on health & wellbeing, crime prevention and 
general safety. 
  

 
2 Forest Upcycling 

The aim of the project is to help vulnerable people and victims of crime by making their outdoor spaces 
look more presentable and well kept. This   gives the appearance of a less vulnerable resident and 
reduces their susceptibility to crime. This project is going very well, with the spring and summer months 
allowing for lots of gardening to be done. They have now completed a total of 76 hours of gardening free 
of charge for people in need. They work with the job centre that refers volunteers to help with the 
gardening project and furniture work. They have built up a good rapport with their gardening customers 
and although the funding for this work will end, there are several customers who will continue to need 
their help and they intend to be there for them in the future. The gardening team like to be busy.  It is 
good for their confidence and self-esteem. Therefore, on quiet days when the project does not have paid 
work, the project continues to send them to help out the people who need it most.  
 

 
3 Severn View Food Project 

The project has started a 3rd lunch club in Cirencester, which has increased the number of clients by 20 
plus each week. The Cashes Green club has increased by 25% with 4 new people joining. Phil Sullivan 
has had the opportunity to share crime prevention information with the group, which was well received 
by those present. 
 

 
4 Gloucester Bike Project 

The project is helping older people (over 50s) stay physically active for longer and creates volunteering 
opportunities for people aged 50+. It incorporates safety advice and messages as part of their courses 
for older people. The courses are very popular, with over 90% of places filled to date and the project 
actively promotes other PCC projects such as “Keep Safe” which in turn is passed on to other members 
of the community by course attendees.  
 

 
 5 Cheltenham Trust 

In general, they have achieved what the project had originally set out to deliver, engaging with both the 
younger & older generations.  The work delivered by all was outstanding. They brought people together 
from all walks of life and the outcomes and stories told have had an effect on all who took part in the 
project. With the connections made within community groups through the Oakley Intergenerational 
project, they will be looking to those communities for future projects to ensure they continue to receive 
access to various activities in Oakley. 

Page 30



 

15 

 
6 

 
Be Social Winchcombe 
There has been increased engagement through the Facebook page during the three-month period with 
many posts being shared onwards to a wider audience.  
 
The Well-Being event held on Saturday 6th October was hosted by Be Social and promoted the classes 
and courses held in Winchcombe at a daytime event. A series of talks and demos were held that were 
well received by attendees and the event had good support from local businesses who ran stalls. 
Promotion was via social media and an advertising flyer that was printed and distributed locally, 
including via school bags at the primary schools. Promotion of the event helped spread the word about 
Be Social. 
 

 
7 

 
Cotswold Friends 
To support older people living in their own homes and in residential care, to feel less lonely and isolated, 
to feel safer, cared for and more connected to their local community. This enables people to stay living 
independently in their own homes for longer and improves quality of life. There are 10 lunch clubs 
supporting on average between 300 and 350 people overall.New attendees include referrals from GPs 
and Social Prescribers, Health Visitors, Community Nurses, Community Mental Health Team, Physios 
and Occupational Therapists, family, friends and self. 
 

 
8 

 
Gay Glos 
Has been very instrumental in the setting up of a sub group for schools in relation to Hate Crime and 
Incidents. Progressing work on issues such as common content for schools to incorporate in Anti 
Bullying Policies for schools and agreeing a simplified reporting system for schools to report incidents to 
County Council Section 175 Audit on a real time basis and training input for schools to use for staff and 
pupils.   
 

 
9 Treasure Seekers - Cavern Club 

The project aimed to see adults with mental health struggles attend a variety of activities to support their 
mental health, to see an increase in skills development of those attending and start an activity 
programme which is needs driven. This quarter they have continued to run ukulele lessons, a singing 
group, art workshops and Xchange. The latter is a support group for those struggling with drug/alcohol 
addiction. They have secured a link through the Gloucester Rotary Club to be able to have an on-going 
supply of board games and puzzles for those attending the mental health drop in.  
 
They have continued to liaise with Gloucester City Homes around the concept of incorporating housing 
advice during the mental health drop in and hope to finalise details in Q4. Additionally, the local 
community policing team has picked the idea of holding regular Police Surgeries in The Cavern. The 
project with the Clinical Commissioning Group and healthcare provision has moved forward in this 
quarter. They are considering a February launch and will have a GP and nurse with them on a weekly 
basis (alternating). They will be holding clinic sessions and getting to know those attending the drop in.  
 
Also, contact has been made with a local dental surgery wanting to develop a similar outreach project, 
as well as physio teams, community midwife teams and the podiatry service.  
Coupled with the existing activities listed above, the project is moving towards their vision of the mental 
health drop in having a ‘wrap around’ approach to improving the overall wellbeing of those attending. 
Another excellent event was held at Waterwells giving a range of clients an opportunity to demonstrate 
how much they have gained from being part of the project/projects run by this organisation. 

Page 31



 

16 

 
10 Together in Matson 

In this quarter a Networking Event was hosted by the project. All Older But Not Overlooked (OBNO) 
projects were invited to be represented & around 40 attended. Presentations were given by the PCC 
Martin Surl, DPCC Chris Brierley, Deputy Chief Executive of OPCC Richard Bradley, Head of 
Community Safety Stroud District Mike Hammond Chief Inspectors Richard Peglar and Andy Morford & 
Crime Prevention Lead David McFarlane. In addition several groups operating from Together in Matson 
gave excellent presentations the project theme of the day was Community Safety.  

The project shares information and intelligence with their local PCSO’s, working together to support the 
local community and make it a safe place. Police teams are invited to all their events and have office 
space for the PCSO’S to work and use as a base. The project also works with Junior Wardens’ young 
person’s project, the Aston Project and Great Expectations. All of the aims and objectives are included in 
all the work that they do including, home visits to older people, mentoring young people and installing 
work ethos, a group for all ages to ask about and cope with feelings of bereavement, older people 
reading with school age children, older people using skills they had forgotten, an art group of mixed age 
groups, R.O.S.E.S mental health group & people coping with anxiety, depression, fears and phobias, Up 
cycling; people of all ages and abilities making, building and restoring furniture for their community, 
Triple P course; parents in need of parenting help, Youth work; mentoring, activities, social and life skills, 
Sewing group; all ages and abilities making items for their own homes and clothes Redwell Re-stock; 
giving free food and household items. 
 

 
11 Glos Pogty 

They have re-branded the group to more accurately reflect and meet the needs of the Young Trans 
community and their families. They had previously developed new branding/logos and have now 
purchased stock. Imagery/photography will be implemented across the new leaflets – which will be ready 
for early 2019 events and distribution. Website discussions/build also in early stages. Also, they have 
significantly increased members through co-ordinated sharing with trans support national networks and 
have a 50% increase in members contacting/coming to group sessions. They have recently held a 
members meeting to discuss medical interventions for trans children and shared care outcomes across 
the private and NHS systems, in order to share information and help others at a similar stage. 
 

 
12 Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust-Bright Futures 

They delivered 3 courses this quarter with 110 people engaging with local green spaces. Ninety per cent 
of participants reported feeling less socially isolated, 70% showed improved mental health and the 
organisation saw a 60% increase in volunteers. 
 

 
13 

 
Keep Safe 
This project was presented as a refresh at the PCSO’s Forum to continue to connect PCSO’s with the 
Project Lead and other organisations county wide increasing reach and support for the scheme.  
 

 
14 County Hate Crime (HC)  

The work has included monthly monitoring of police recorded Hate Crime and Incident reporting levels, 
including 3rd party through Victim Support, where a sustained rise in overall numbers is a measure of 
success. 

 Growing number of hate crime awareness trained Community Hate Crime Champions.  

 Measurable improvements in hate crime awareness amongst community based professionals, 

Page 32



 

17 

captured in ‘distance travelled’ awareness training evaluation forms.   

 Periodic dip-sample monitoring of Victim Support Hate Crime and Incident referrals via transfer 
versus police figures to ensure accurate data sharing for contact and support. 

 Dip-sample monitoring of victims’ journeys in HC & I cases within Victim Support, to identify 
successes and address any gaps in service for victims. 

 

 
15 Wiggly Worm Gloucester Community Kitchen Project 

They are now working closely with Kingfishers Treasure Seekers, The Cavern and Chuckaboos projects 
to target suitable participants. 
 

 
16 

 
Roots Coffee and Community 
The role the requested funding was for has been filled to assist with event planning and running, social 
media, marketing, volunteer management, some community hall bookings and grant work.  So now the 
members of the management team have more time to use their creativity and develop Roots further. 
They have helped to settle the new members of staff into their roles, continued to meet regularly to help 
to manage Roots and started new activities such as Rock Painting, bug hunts, craft etc., as well as 
continuing to offer their time as volunteers to help with HR and at events. They are also active in working 
with the Community Builder to develop new groups to support the community. Good news is that Roots 
is generating enough income to almost be covering its core costs (excluding administrative support, our 
youth work and specifically funded projects at Roots, such as the community meals). They aim to 
continue increasing income from the coffee shop and use of the community room. 
 

 
17 

 
Police - Missing Persons Imitative 
Neighbourhood Vulnerabilities officers have now been trained and are conducting debrief of high risk 
missing adults from an aspect of protecting and preventing further episodes. 
 

 
18 

 
Police and OPCC working together 
C/I Rich Peglar and Phil Sullivan continue to visit partners and projects delivering services in support of 
OBNO. This quarter they met with the chair of the Stroud Community Safety Partnership. In October C/I 
Rich Peglar presented at the OBNO & Hate Crime priority event in Matson on Neighborhood Policing 
and his role as OBNO Police lead. They also attended the Dementia Action Alliance event at the Forest 
of Dean District Council (FODDC) in company with other officers from the Community Harm Reduction 
team and the Special Constabulary. They will continue to support this work to roll out the initiative across 
Gloucestershire.  
 

 
19 

 
Police - Older people Fraud Prevention 
Operation Signature (supporting elderly victims of fraud) was launched in December 2018 by the Chief 
Constable to include a video message. There are still IT and data issues that frustrate our activity 
caused by Action Fraud to be resolved. 
 

 
20  

 
Police Feedback – regarding the Vulnerable 
Positive feedback from Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board demonstrates an improvement in 
Police understanding of vulnerability and the quality of VIST (Vulnerability Identification Screening Tool).   
 
 

Page 33



 

18 

 
Older but not overlooked – planned activities in next quarter 

 

 

 Chief Inspector Peglar will be speaking at the PCSO’s Forum and tasking Inspectors to drive work to raise 
awareness of the priority of visits to Care Homes and to make the visits more informed if partners have 
concerns about how to communicate more easily with the Neighbourhood Policing Teams. 

 C/I Peglar and Phil Sullivan Strategic Lead for PCC on OBNO will continue to work together to take 
forward the aims of the Strategy and visiting projects to support them and further develop greater Police 
ties 

 Chief Inspector Peglar and OBNO lead Phil Sullivan have met with Deputy Chief Executive Richard 
Bradley in preparation for a meeting with Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire & Rescue 
Services (HMICFRS) on the contribution that OBNO makes in supporting Policing activities. 

 
 
Older but not Overlooked – Good News Stories  
 

Gloucestershire Bike Project 

A gentleman booked to attend a course. While on the course, over coffee, he opened up about feeling lonely 
he was finding retirement as he spent so much time on his own now. The project invited him to join them as a 
volunteer and he now volunteers regularly with them. He has said that he thoroughly enjoys volunteering and 
enjoys the camaraderie and banter in the workshop. He says he looks forward to coming every week. The 
project then introduced him to one of our other older volunteers (M), who had experienced similar feelings 
after leaving work and moving back to Gloucestershire after years spent working around the country. (M) Is 
also involved with Men in Sheds and does some volunteering with Age UK. The two now get along famously 
and now the project s new volunteer has starting attending the Men in Sheds group and meeting up with (M) 
to walk the dogs and do other social activities. He certainly seems happier and more positive now 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

19 

 
Young people becoming adults 
 
Intent:  
To deliver sensitive, relevant and effective policing ensuring our young people become law-abiding, 
productive members of society 
To ensure that the ‘system’ must work for them, not against them 
 

 
1 

 
Work in the custody suite is going well and we have been able to support several children in police 
custody and provide information and advice to officers dealing with children suspected of committing an 
offence to support them in their decision making. We are currently inducting the second Youth Custody 
Coordinator, who has now been successfully vetted and we have also recruited to the third post, to 
provide weekend cover, however we are awaiting the outcome of their vetting. It is anticipated that we 
will be providing the 7 day a week cover between the hours of 9am-9pm from the next reporting period.  
 

 
2 

 
The Police And Criminal Evidence Act (PACE) Transfer protocol has now been reviewed and is awaiting 
sign off. Post sign off it has been agreed that a series of multi-agency briefings (Custody Sgts/ 
Emergency Duty Team and Youth Support Team (YST) will be arranged to ensure it is fully understood 
and adhered to. We hope to have this in place for the next reporting period. 
 

 
3 

 
Children First  
 

 
 
We celebrated the one-year anniversary of Children First on 1/1/19 and the above chart illustrates the 
significant reduction in First Time Entrants in just the first 6 months of operation.  
 
From 1st January 2018 to 31st December 2018, there have been 243 YRI Interventions given to 221 
Young People. Of the 221 Young People given a Youth Restorative Intervention (YRI), 30 (13.5%) 
Young People have reoffended to date.  
 
Children First is successfully diverting young people away from the formal criminal justice system and 
ensuring that victims and restorative interventions are at the heart of interventions with young people. 
 
We now have a full time Sergeant allocated to Children First and are in the process of recruiting a full 
time Coordinator to work alongside them. Interviews are scheduled to take place on 30th January.  
 

Page 35



 

20 

Governance of Children First is also due to move to the Community Harm Reduction Team within the 
Constabulary on 1/3/19 and there is a transition plan in place to support this. 
 

 
4 

 
A post implementation improvement plan around Children First has now been developed, incorporating 
all the feedback from the Centre for Justice Innovation, Essex Peer Review and our internal audit of Out 
of Court Disposals following Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Probation (HMIP) Thematic Inspection 
findings. Children First Working Group continues to meet monthly and the Strategic Group Quarterly. 
 

 
5 

 
Following on from the workshops with partners re: Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), we have also met with 
Project Solace to further review our practice in response to young people displaying ASB to ensure that 
support and challenge are provided in equal measures and at the earliest opportunity to prevent the 
escalation of ASB and that the underlying causes of the behaviour are properly understood. We have 
made some further amendments to the draft ASB Police Document and flow charts to incorporate all the 
feedback and agreements and this is awaiting final sign off. We will then present this to Safer 
Gloucestershire to inform the development of a countywide strategy. 
 
In the interim we are working with partners to review existing ASBIs (Anti-Social Behaviour Injunctions) 
to ensure they are fit for purpose and effective. We have also begun a pilot project which enables an 
early multi-agency response to ASB concerns. 
 

 
Young people becoming adults – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 

 Increase the capacity of the Youth Custody Coordinators to 9am-9pm 7 days a week 

 Arrange and deliver a series of multi-agency training events re: requirements of the PACE Transfer 

 Protocol to ensure it can be successfully applied- Police, YST, Social Care 

 Recruit to Children First Coordinator post 

 Transition of Governance Arrangements of Children First to Community Harm Reduction Team (CHRT) 

 Recruit two volunteer victim support staff for victim updates 

 Implement new ASB processes 

 Transition of governance of Children First from Restorative Gloucestershire to CHRT 
 

 
Young people becoming adults – Good News Stories  
 

 
X is a 16yr old young woman with particularly challenging behaviours and a range of vulnerabilities. She is 
open to social care as a looked after young person. She has presented with suicidal threats and self-harming 
behaviour in the community. Police have attended the scene and attempted to de-escalate the situation. X 
has reacted to this situation and has attacked the officers at the scene. They felt they had no option but to 
arrest her and take to Compass House. On arrival at Compass House X was seen by the custody co-
ordinator who assessed that X would benefit from a formal mental health assessment. This assessment was 
undertaken by a Mental Health nurse and in collaboration with all parties (social care, health and police, 
communication facilitated by the custody co-ordinator) it was agreed that it would not be in the interests of 
justice or the young person to detain further. As a result she was released from custody with no charge and 
then taken to a mental health facility for ongoing assessment. This is a good example of collaborative working 
that diverts a young person away from the justice system and towards services that are better designed to 
meet needs. It is a more effective use of resources. 

Page 36



 

21 

  
Safe days and nights 
 
Intent: 
To better manage the Gloucestershire night-time economy, with alcohol related crime and disorder 
being reduced 
That everyone should be able to go out to our parks, pubs and streets without fear 
 

Policing 
updates 

DA/Stalking and Harassment/Sexual offences 

1 
 
There are two ongoing Domestic Homicide reviews from 2018.  One case is due back for a retrial 
at Bristol Crown Court in March as the jury in the original trial could not reach a verdict on the 
suspect.  With regards the other case the suspect pleaded guilty in November and was given life 
imprisonment with a minimum term of 29 years. Cross reference with good work in relation to 
investigation and progression to court. 
 

2 
 
Changes in the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) and the move to Gloucestershire Shire 
Hall have meant there has been a need to redesign some of our Domestic Abuse processes.  
These have started to take effect in the last few weeks.  In particular the Domestic Abuse 
Safeguarding Team (DAST) have been posted to work in the MASH so that they can work more 
closely with partners, deliver the daily DA meeting and service Multi-Agency Risk Assessment 
Conference (MARAC). The DAST Det.Sgt is now responsible for chairing most of the MARAC 
meetings. The DAST are tightly focused on safeguarding the most vulnerable and dealing with 
high risk cases so that means they spend a lot of time working on MARAC cases, Domestic 
Violence Disclosure scheme (DVDS), Domestic Violence Protection Notices (DVPN’s), alarms 
and working closely with Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse Support Service (GDASS). Although 
backlogs remain in the MASH we are starting to make some in roads and bids have been made 
for further staff to assist with this. 
 

3 
 
A significant rise in the use of protective measures; particularly DVPN’s is a really positive story.  
We have increased our use significantly having previously been criticised by the HMIC for not 
using them as wider as we could/should. Cross reference with good news in terms of improved 
usage and success. 
 

4 
 

DCI Ocone remains the regional lead for DA and has been invited to the Home Office on the 28 
Jan to consider the new Domestic Abuse Protection Orders which are expected to be the 
replacement of DVPN/O’s. This will have a far wider reach.  The Home Office are also expected to 
imminently release the outcome of the DA bill consultation last summer.  That is likely to include a 
DA Commissioners role. 
 

5 
 

A peer review of MARAC has been completed by Wiltshire and identified some areas for potential 
improvement.  This report will be considered by the MARAC steering group on Monday the 21/1. 
 

Page 37



 

22 

6 
 

DCI Ocone did a Radio BBC Gloucestershire interview on the 7th of January talking about 
stalking after our figures rose from 27 crimes in 2016, to 80 in 2017 and 123 in 2018.  This 
increase is generally a good news story as we have spent considerable time and effort in training 
and improving the awareness of our staff in this area.  Constabulary staffs are now able to better 
recognise stalking behaviour and crime accordingly.  In addition our crime management unit also 
identify these crimes more successfully and Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) are more inclined 
to prosecute them.  As a further safety net our stalking administrator is also doing significant work 
in scanning for such offences and escalating them to my tactical lead. These figures can be 
expected to continue to rise. 
 

7 
 
The stalking clinic continues.  Funding remains an issue for the Independent Stalking Advocacy 
Caseworkers (ISAC) and administrator roles.  We remain one of just a handful of forces nationally 
with a bespoke stalking provision.  One of the cases handled last year involved a GP who was 
stalked by a patient.  At the successful conclusion of that case the victim wrote to me to offer her 
thanks for the work undertaken by the Officer in Charge (OIC), ISAC and the intervention of the 
stalking clinic.  Her final paragraph reads ‘I also wish to acknowledge and thank the other 
members of the Gloucestershire Stalking Clinic.  I am very fortunate that this initiative happened 
to be put in place soon after I reported my stalker to the police, and, I understand that my case 
was one of the first cases to be discussed within it.  I am sure that through the efficient exchange 
of information and ideas, enabled by the multiagency structure of the Stalking Clinic that the 
expertise of the Gloucestershire Constabulary in handling cases of stalking is set to become a 
beacon for other forces to learn from.  It is a recipe for success, in my opinion, and I do hope that 
the importance of the clinic’s service, the role of the ISAC, continue to be recognised and funded 
well into the future’. Cross reference for good news. 
 

8 
 
Staffing for the Rape and Serious Sexual Offences Unit (RASSO) has seen a significant overhaul 
in the last three months with a new DCI, DI, two new DS’s and a number of other staffing 
changes.  The team has also been brought into alignment with the CID. Demand remains high 
and historic reporting remains an issues. 
 

9 
 
A sexual offences awareness campaign in the lead up to Christmas 2018. This generated 
significant online interest and debate.  The campaign was managed by Dan White and sought to 
dispel some of the most common myths whilst carefully intertwining public safety advice. The 
campaign was well received. Cross reference for good news.  
 

 Human trafficking and modern day slavery 

10 
 
Awareness of the indicators of Modern Slavery has continued within force and externally, with 
good engagement in training opportunities and support of Operation Aidant on each and every 
occasion.  
 

11 
 
National benchmarking process has Gloucestershire at 1st in the country with regards modern 
day slavery. 
 

Page 38



 

23 

12 
 
Anti-Slavery partnership continues to meet quarterly. There are some benefits but it is 
acknowledged this could be more dynamic and agree processes not being followed. Inputs 
provided to CSP’s, Voluntary Sector, Victim Support, Council staff and others. 
 

 ASB and Night Time Economy 

13 
 
New initiatives and ongoing work within NH 
Tewkesbury - have secured some funding from the PCC via the Council to start a Heart Safe 
initiative in Tewkesbury- the Defibrillators have been purchased now and we are starting to roll 
this out. We have started to canvass local businesses to see if there is any appetite for a 
‘Tewkesbury Safe’ scheme. 
 
Cotswolds - we have been working with the ‘Yellow Bus project’ in supporting some of our 
homeless individuals 
 
Stroud - Planning for delivery of county lines presentations to schools in the district. To be paid for 
by the local Community Safety Partnership (CSP). CSPs also funding the full programme for 
Intensive Engagement.  Our safeguarding officer/PCSOs are having regular meetings with our 
local supported accommodations both for adult and children; this is in conjunction with the Public 
Protection Bureau (PPB). 
 
Forest - Safer Estates rejuvenated with our support - This is a regular multi-agency meeting with 
Housing, Police, and other agencies such as Environmental Protection, The Forestry, Street 
Wardens etc. where issues Forest wide are discussed which are having an impact on the 
community, to establish which agency/ agencies are best suited to deal with the issues and if 
support from other agencies is required, for instance Housing issuing an injunction supported by 
Police. 
 
Orders and civil injunctions obtained across all areas. 
Intensive engagement is being rolled out across all NH areas. 
 

14 
 
SOLACE update covering Cheltenham and Gloucester; please see attached:  
 

ASB Solace.docx

 

15 
 
Work continues on changing the NH shifts to support the Night Time Economy (NTE) along with 
training for the Special Constabulary specifically to support the NTE.  
 

16 
 
Work has been undertaken to understand predictive demand for NTE weekends to allow effective 
resource planning.  
 

17 
 
Partnership working continues to strengthen both at a strategic and tactical level supported by the 
weekly joint briefings. 

Page 39

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/4394/asb-solace.docx


 

24 

18 
 
The Door youth work teams have had substantial engagement with their local communities in 
Stroud and Dursley via their general community-based approach, engaging with and providing a 
reassuring presence in these areas. In addition, they have provided significant support for 
‘goodwill/Christmas’ street-based events in both areas.  
 

 SOC and county lines 

19 
 
Serious violence and firearms related incidents have reduced as a result of police activity. While 
cuckooing continues we are now seeing increased collaboration between county lines and local 
drug users are now being utilised as willing drug runners and not traditional victims of ‘Cuckooing’. 
We have seen the use of hotels and bed and breakfast locations as bases for drug dealing. 
 

20 
 
Very successful press release in September 2018 detailing the achievement of hitting 200 years 
of sentencing for County Lines drug dealing. Significant national coverage for this achievement 
and appears to be having a positive impact on the amount of county lines currently within the 
county which have decreased recently. Cross reference with good news.  
 

21 
 
Continued engagement through the Serious & Organised Crime Strategic Partnership (SOCSP) 
Prevent plan in place with Cheltenham Borough Council. 
 

22 
 
Operation Tarak South West Region County lines partnership campaign and intensification week 
to raise awareness from 21st January 2019 and target County Lines offenders. 
 

23 
 
In support of the intensification week and in partnership with Gloucestershire's Addiction treatment 
services Change Grow Live (CGL), a series of prevent/protect text messages to be sent to known 
drug abusers phone numbers advising of our commitment to target of County Lines (CL) drug 
dealing, how CL target vulnerable drug users, how we are seeking their assistance through 
intelligence reporting and advise on addiction treatment services through CGL and how to seek 
police assistance. 
 

24 
 
Recent upstream targeting of the Blue line which originated from Birmingham led to the 
prosecution of a principal offender who received a total of over three years imprisonment for 
running a county line into Gloucestershire and Worcestershire.. 
 

 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) 

25 
 
CSE Referrals – Increase of 256% from the previous year. Majority of referrals submitted by 
professionals in partnership agencies (68%).   
 

26 
 
The new County CSE strategy and action plan was agreed in December 2018. 
The Multi Agency Child Exploitation meeting continues to coordinate operational activity between 
partnership agencies.  

Page 40



 

25 

 Funded initiatives 

27 
 
NTE – student community patrol – partnership working with the Street Pastors and Guardians at 
the NTE partners meetings (working on the MoU for groups out in the NTE), PCSO’ and wider 
policing family - embedded. 
 

28 
 
Cheltenham and Gloucester street pastors continue to support NTE working in partnership with 
the constabulary and local authorities to great effect. 
 

29 
 
DA - Healthy Relationships, Families and Communities - Delivered 3 young people’s workshops to 
150 attendees. A six week ‘Next Steps’ programme ran during quarter three, delivered to nine 
women who live in Stroud or the surrounding area. Delivered 2 workshops, power and control and 
building relationships, reaching 12 women.  
 

30 
 
Unheard – continued progress of delivery of workshops and engagement with Anna King of BBC 
Radio Gloucestershire gave the project a lot of air time soon after the performance on the 10th 
July including interviews with P3 clients and staff.  
The Commissioners Fund took photos and videos on 10th July.  
The P3 photographer attended on 9th Oct to take photos.  
BBC Radio Gloucestershire attended on 9th Oct as well as The Gloucester Diocese press and 
marketing officer. 
 

31 
 
Working without fear - Delivered two full days of workshops to staff at the University of Salford. 
They were very impressed with the sessions and will be inviting us back to deliver more sessions 
to other staff. A taster session was held with 12 Gloucester City Council staff as a part of the 16 
days of action. Good feedback and hoping that I can now deliver the full days workshops to their 
selected staff. 
 
Coercive Control Presentations delivered to : 
Swindon Domestic Abuse Forum. 
Cirencester College 
Swindon DA Forum 
Gloucester Academy 
Gloucester Quays Rotary 
Gloucestershire College (6 sessions across Cheltenham, Gloucester and Forest of Dean 
Campus) 
Presentations delivered to: 
 
Delivered stalking workshops to over 40 probation officers in Gloucester. 
 

32  

 

 
Sober parrot - developed a ‘Wellbeing Festival’, which will start at the end of January, it is 
designed to inspire additional engagement from the wider community during Dry January. Most 
events have been developed with and for the recovery audience. We aim to begin conversations 
around how those in recovery and the wider public can look at developing a toolkit to develop 
sustainable healthy living and alcohol free fun. 

Page 41



 

26 

33 
 
Integrated Family Support Service for Integrated Offender Management (IOM) - The project 
continues to gain visibility within the IOM teams.  The worker continues to build and maintain 
positive multi agency relationships with the partners like CGL and the local authority. 
 
After a successful joint delivery of the Recovery Communities workshop last quarter with the Anti-
social Behaviour officer at Stonham (Home Group); The Nelson Trust will start delivering the 
workshop independently in January.  Possible locations for delivery are our new alcohol free 
venue in Cheltenham - The Sober Parrot or at the Women’s Centre depending on where most 
participants signing up are based. 
 
Twenty families have been referred since the inception of the project, three families declined 
support for various reasons, one family moved out of the area and another family member was 
transferred to another Nelson Trust specialist worker to receive tailored support. 
 

34 
 
Making it - delivered and engaged participants in 36 one to one sessions between October to 
January.  We have been working with education providers to deliver music activities alongside 
some of the participant’s education plan to achieve a Bronze Arts Award, which means they only 
attend during term time. 
 

35 
 
Great Expectations (GE) and Aston continue to strengthen During the last quarter they have been 
into 3 more schools and delivered a Tier 3 in a community group. Ran a Your Knife or Your Life 
for Newent School which formed part of the 6 week Tier 3 program; we had 25 young people 
attend this event. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with HMP Hewel has been agreed 
and singed off with the imminent arrival of the first mentor form the prison. 
 
The Aston Project now covers Cheltenham, Gloucester, Newent, Tewkesbury and Nailsworth. In 
expanding, the project has sought to move away from a dependency upon the Police to create 
activities for young people, to a stronger partnership with community to identify what is already 
happening in the community that the project can link young people with.   
 

36 
 
Gloucestershire Rape and Sexual Abuse Centre (GRASAC) - Volunteer Manager and Core 
Funding - The last quarter has seen a great deal of activity and change within GRASAC.  This has 
included the integration of the ISVA service and the extension of the Helpline hours.  The 
Volunteer Co-ordinator left the post in November.  As a team, GRASAC came together to ensure 
that during this period volunteers continue to be updated, informed and supported whilst we 
recruited a new Volunteer Coordinator who commenced on 2nd  January. In the last quarter 
GRASAC has worked towards the aims and objectives.  
 

37 
 
GRASAC -Specialist Support worker - Participated in Reclaim the Night and attended GRASAC’s 
first Charity Auction. Please see the Volunteer Co-ordinator/Core report for further information 
surrounding publicity. 
 

38 
 
Roots - Roots has continued to provide a high quality but low cost and friendly coffee shop which 
acts as a hospitable social setting.  
 

Page 42



 

27 

39  
Cavern - This quarter they have continued to run.  
 
● Ukulele lessons 
● Singing group 
● Art workshops 
● Xchange - a support group for those struggling with drug/alcohol addiction 
 
Furthermore, this quarter they have secured a link through the Gloucester Rotary Club to be able 
to have an ongoing supply of board games and puzzles for those attending the mental health drop 
in.  
 

40  
 
Gloucestershire Drug & Alcohol service-Alcohol Arrest & Drug Arrest Referral scheme. CGL have 
continued to deliver all aspects of the alcohol and drug arrest referral scheme alongside the cell 
sweeps. Working relationships with custody staff have been positive throughout and we have 
seen some great examples of multi-agency working ensuring detainees get the wrap around 
support they need whilst in the custody suite and when they leave.   
 

41 
 
Forest Community Safety Partnership (CSP) - The CSP Co-ordinator started in November and 
has been busy getting to know the members and their roles within the district. His first task was to 
put together a Community Safety Booklet and this is nearly complete. It is hoped that it will be 
issued in early 2019 and distributed across the district. The booklet is aimed at informing local 
residents of the partnership’s members and the work they do within the district with a circulation of 
5,000 books. Not having a Co-ordinator in post has proved difficult. Promotion of the Grants has 
been a particular issue as the Co-ordinators role would normally play a part in this. This 
recruitment of the coordinator should now resolve the issues and improve the CSP position.  
 

 
Safe days and nights for all – planned activities in the next quarter 
 

 

 Stalking and harassment campaign which will launch this March.  It will be focused on public awareness 
and identification as well as informing officers of the availability of the clinic and its provisions. 

 Consideration is presently being given to the management of prostitution and street workers with some 
initial analytical work showing that around 20 such individuals are suffering repeat victimisation.  Those 20 
females account for 128 offences predominantly of robbery, assault and rape over just 24 months. CI John 
Lynch-Warden has been leading this piece of work and a paper will be submitted that suggests a Police 
staff member should be recruited to work alongside the RASSO (but potentially from Barton Street), to 
work with these females and the agencies supporting them to build trust and reduce harm. 

 National, regional and local focus with continued expectation in terms of delivery and understanding. Op 
Aidant has its 15th iteration in February and Glos has engaged in all. Further 3 pan-European plans from 
April to December.  

 Review ongoing in relation to the Modern Slavery Act and progressing prosecutions.  

 Increased partnership working through the recently appointed regional County Lines coordinator and the 
National Coordination Centre at the NCA (National Crime Agency) and engagement in the National 
Intensification week running 21st January 2019. 

 Cavern - We have continued to liaise with Gloucester City Homes around the concept of a Housing Advice 
Drop in during the mental health drop in and hope to finalise details in Q4. Additionally the local community 
policing team has picked the idea of holding regular Police Surgeries in The Cavern. This will be hugely 

Page 43



 

28 

beneficial 

 In addition they will be working with Wiggly Worm to deliver food courses in coming quarters. 

 Life Space Provision - Now received all the equipment ordered and will start to use it in January. The new 
equipment means we can save on operating cost with no towing/reduced towing of Vans and maintenance 
on one van from January as we transition to the new system, disposing of one in January as obsolete and 
the second during the coming year 

 Crimestoppers Anti-Crime Initiative Call Centre - April – November 2018 • 1,114 reports given to 
Gloucestershire Constabulary • 47% relates to drug trafficking and supply • October 2018 compared with 
October 2017 saw a 61% increase November 2018 compared with November 2017 saw a 22% increase.  

 Volunteers – cross reference with good news.  

 Gloucester City Wardens (City Protection Officers - CPOs) - In February 2019 a new report will be 
completed by the University of Gloucestershire, early indications are that the evaluation report will provide 
positive results. The City Safe Manager is meeting with Dr Andrew Stafford from the University of 
Gloucestershire on Friday 18th January 2019 to go through the report details prior to publication. It is 
anticipated that the report will be published for the next Quarterly update.   

 

 
Safer Days & Nights – Good News Stories 
 

 
Please cross reference to the above – in addition: 

 The Door - As a result of being awarded the PCC Pride in Partnership award The Door project arranged 
extensive coverage in the local press – Dursley Gazette and Stroud News and Journal. 
As a result of Wotton-under-Edge Town Council, Dursley Town Council and Cam Parish Council extending 
their commissioning of youth services to The Door, there was press coverage of both launch events.  
These were attended by town council representatives, local community groups as well as Inspector Sarah 
Blake and PC Peter Lay from the neighbourhood policing team for the Stroud District. 
 

 Working without fear: ‘I would just like to say Thank you for going to Cinderford college today and speaking 
to the young adults. My daughter has just got home and hasn’t stopped talking about u and Hollie. She 
was very touched on what u were saying and has learnt a valuable lesson today Thank you again x’. 

 

 Sober parrot: As mentioned earlier in the report we have been out and about promoting the Sober Parrot 
as a music venue and a community resource. We are also proud to have great Google and TripAdvisor 
reviews, all of which will contribute to increasing our customer base.   

 
https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/whats-on/gallery/sober-parrot-opens-in-cheltenham-1569573   

 
http://www.criticalcheltenham.com/2017/06/27/sober-parrot/   

 
https://www.facebook.com/TheSoberParrot/   

 
https://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Restaurant_Review-g186284-d14181274-Reviews-The_Sober_Parrot-
Cheltenham_Cotswolds_England.html   

 
https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/whats-on/gallery/sober-parrot-opens-in-cheltenham-1569573   
 

 Making it/Music works: This quarter has been a huge success for the programme. The Music Works and 
Gloucestershire Youth Support Team have won the national ‘John Hawkins Memorial Award 2018’ for the 
Making It programme for demonstrating an innovative and creative approach to youth justice. 
http://www.themusicworks.org.uk/gloucestershire-charity-the-music-works-wins-youth-justice-award/ 

Page 44

https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/whats-on/gallery/sober-parrot-opens-in-cheltenham-1569573
http://www.criticalcheltenham.com/2017/06/27/sober-parrot/
https://www.facebook.com/TheSoberParrot/
https://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Restaurant_Review-g186284-d14181274-Reviews-The_Sober_Parrot-Cheltenham_Cotswolds_England.html
https://www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Restaurant_Review-g186284-d14181274-Reviews-The_Sober_Parrot-Cheltenham_Cotswolds_England.html
https://www.gloucestershirelive.co.uk/whats-on/gallery/sober-parrot-opens-in-cheltenham-1569573


 

29 

 

 Theft prevention posters have been distributed across the City, working with Gloucestershire Constabulary 
Corporate Communications Team. Various articles and interviews with Gloucestershire Live have taken 
place over this Quarter.  

 

 BBC Points West attended the City on Monday 7th January 2019. 
 

 Op Mamushi overseen by Community Harm Reduction – Organised Crime Groups (OCG’s) linked to child 
exploitation has received recognition from the Home Office as an area of outstanding work.  Mick McNally 
from ‘The violence and vulnerability Unit’ (home office/mayor/PCC funded). When he heard that I was from 
Gloucestershire he was also delighted. He was aware of ‘Op Mamushi’ and some of our interventions, he 
reiterated that our team within Gloucestershire Constabulary is being held up as ‘good practice’ National  

 
Please see attached: 

Operation 

Mamushi.docx
 

 

 Comments on the presentation to the Home Office: 
 

The presentation was so professionally delivered and with such passion. Your knowledge of the V/F gang 
members and commitment to do something positive to prevent any further stabbings between the gangs, was 
really inspiring.  

 
It was clear how much time and hard work had gone into researching and then applying for the numerous 
gang injunctions. (I was astounded to hear that the court file was 900 pages long and that your overarching 
statement was 20,000 words Helen!!)  

 
I was impressed with the ingenuity you showed in delivering the gang injunctions to the various gang members 
Eg: Piggybacking meetings to serve and speak with them directly about it. Also that you worked well partners 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) and Social care who then assisted you with funding.  

 
This disruption tool has clearly proved to be successful; simply the fact that the defendants ‘hate them’ shows 
that they are having an effect. You managed to impose a number of impressive restrictions upon the gang 
members, via the court, in order to disrupt Eg: To prevent their association with each other and in turn the 
potential of subsequent violent disorders. 

 
This is an amazing piece of work that I know you are continuing to work on in respect of the numerous 
breaches.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

https://www.gloucestershire-pcc.gov.uk/media/4396/op-mamushi.docx


 

30 

 
Safe and social driving 
 
Intent: 
That people are able to move around our communities in safety and with as much ease and 
convenience as possible 
That the police will enforce the law when necessary, but will all work to reduce offending and 
antisocial driving 
 

 
1 

 
4,841 camera speeding offences processed, 321 endorsable tickets and 348 other tickets issued, which 
led to 241 National Driver Offender Retraining Scheme (NDORS) courses run in Gloucestershire, 
educating 5,303 clients, of which 60% were Gloucestershire Constabulary detected offences. We have 
also produced 470 traffic prosecution files. 
 

 
2 

 
72 traffic offence reports issued for mobile phone usage and 13 letters forwarded in support of the 
mobile phones usage campaign. 
 

 
3 

 
The go ahead was given by OPCC to taking on NDORS education and administration in house from 1st 
June 2018. In the quarter, we took 4,912 bookings of which 3,559 (72%) were on-line and only 1,353 
(28%) were answered via our call handlers. We have operated courses from 7 sites across the county 
including the full suite of NDORS courses. 
 

 
4 

 
Our two new mobile community enforcement officers are fully trained and active in the county. They 
have in the quarter established a further 14 community enforcement sites, and have made 77 visits to 
these locations and detected 536 offences. 
 

 
5 

 
Our new equipment offers better opportunity to look at other anti-social driving offences – mobile 
use/non seatbelt usage and tailgating have all been successfully piloted and have been rolled out. Back 
office processes have been successfully worked through and implemented to support. In November for 
example we detected 32 other offences on the A417, 5 tailgating, 1 mobile phone, 19 vehicle plate 
offences and 7 seatbelt offences. 
 

 
6 

 
Criminal Justice Department (CJD) Traffic Department has established contact with local policing to 
develop strategy and take on local road concerns where possible. 
 

 
 7  

 
byPASSthEdaNGER 
555 students attended this workshop delivered by Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service staff during 
this quarter. It is designed to encourage young people to “speak up” to careless or dangerous driving. 
The number of those who attended this quarter has increased by 121 compared to Q2 and 225 
compared to Q1.  
 

 
8 

 
Wrecked 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service delivered this workshop, designed to reduce the harm caused 

Page 46



 

31 

by drink and drug driving, to 1142 16-24 year olds. That is an increase of 698 from Q2. 
 

 
9 

 
Drive iQ Gloucestershire (DIQG) 
This is a localised certificated online driving awareness programme delivered by Gloucestershire Fire 
and Rescue Service (GFRS). It helps the student to acquire knowledge, which will inform decision-
making processes to reduce risk taking and misconceptions. 
 
From September 2018 until December 31st 2018 632 modules have been completed. The schools who 
have been continually successful in completing these have been Cirencester College, Farmors School, 
Malmesbury and The Cotswold School.  
 
This year Drive iQ needs to be looked at in great detail to decide whether it should be relaunched or if 
something else would be better placed to take over it. 
 

 
10 

 
Gloucestershire Youth mini bike project  
They have consistently reduced calls for ASB related incidents across Gloucester. They are still seeing 
high levels of engagement and participation from disadvantaged and hard to reach young people across 
the spectrum. Their attendance levels remain an average of 28 riders per session. They have provided a 
service for approx. 1,542 young people to date and continue to improve relationships between young 
people, partners, professionals and other members of the local community. 
 

 
11 

 
Young Rider RUup4it  - Cheltenham & Cotswold Advanced Motorcyclists 
To promote safer riding on Gloucestershire Roads to younger, less experienced riders. Their aim is to 
do this by removing the cost of undertaking their Advanced Rider Course, a test which would normally 
cost £149 plus approximately £60 contribution towards fuel for their observer. 
During this quarter test passes are slightly below expectations at this point - some of the riders are 
taking longer to get up to test standard but this could be seen as a positive because it demonstrates that 
we are adding more value to the younger inexperienced rider. They have had 3 test passes. However 2 
Riders have dropped out of the scheme. One has given up biking; the other is finding it difficult to fit in 
time due to work commitments. They therefore have 5 in active training towards their test at the 
moment. 
 

Page 47



 

32 

 
12 

 
Christmas Drink/Drug Drive Campaign  
The Christmas Drink Drive Campaign ran from 1st December- 31st December. It was launched on Friday 
30th November in Cheltenham High Street. The launch was ran collaboratively between GFRS, OPCC 
and Gloucestershire Constabulary. We were joined by the Gloucestershire Live who ran an online article 
about the campaign alongside a video message form Chief Superintendent Jo Smallwood. We also had 
the support of the Sober Parrot which is a bar in Cheltenham that only served non- alcoholic drinks.  
 
Throughout the month enforcement support was given by the Special Constabulary and Roads Policing. 
The table below shows the number of custody drink/drive arrests by month. Looking at 2016, 2017.2018 
the number of arrests throughout the month of December has decreased and the number across the 
year has decreased over the last three years.   
 

Custody Drink/Drive Arrests By Month 

 
2016 2017 2018 

Jan 79 75 76 

Feb 52 70 78 

Mar 70 60 51 

Apr 65 72 56 

May 76 74 68 

Jun 82 83 69 

Jul 80 65 56 

Aug 64 66 66 

Sep 68 73 63 

Oct 69 68 77 

Nov 55 63 59 

Dec 90 76 66 

Total 850 845 785 

    
 

 
13 

 
4,841 camera speeding offences processed, 321 endorsable tickets and 348 other tickets issued, which 
led to 241 NDORS courses run in Gloucestershire, educating 5,303 clients, of which 60% were 
Gloucestershire Constabulary detected offences. We have also produced 470 traffic prosecution files. 
 

 
14 

 
72 traffic offence reports issued for mobile phone usage and 13 letters forwarded in support of the 
mobile phones usage campaign. 
 

 
15 

 
The go ahead was given by OPCC to taking on NDORS education and administration in house from 1st 
June 2018. In the quarter, we took 4,912 bookings of which 3,559 (72%) were on-line and only 1,353 
(28%) were answered via our call handlers. We have operated courses from 7 sites across the county 
including the full suite of NDORS courses. 
 

 
16 

 
Our two new mobile community enforcement officers are fully trained and active in the county. They 
have in the quarter established a further 14 community enforcement sites, and have made 77 visits to 
these locations and detected 536 offences. 
 

Page 48



 

33 

 
17 

 
Our new equipment offers better opportunity to look at other anti-social driving offences – mobile 
use/non seatbelt usage and tailgating have all been successfully piloted and have been rolled out. Back 
office processes have been successfully worked through and implemented to support. In November for 
example we detected 32 other offences on the A417, 5 tailgating, 1 mobile phone, 19 vehicle plate 
offences and 7 seatbelt offences. 
 

 
18 

 
CJD Traffic Dept has established contact with local policing to develop strategy and take on local road 
concerns where possible. 
 

 
Safe and social driving – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 

 The ‘What if..? Roadshow will be starting on 4 February 2019 and will run until the end of March. This will 
be the 3rd year that ‘What if..? has run.  

 We will be updating the Safe and Social Driving Action Plan. 

 We will be looking at Drive IQ to decide if we continue to deliver this or if we replace it with something new.  

 Continue to explore how a Road Safety element could fit into Safe and Well visits.  

 We will look to order the VR (Virtual Reality) headsets and begin to trial these in schools.  

 Current levels of activity with mobile speed enforcement are to be maintained. 

 2 further mobile camera officers to deal with community concerns to be recruited in the next quarter after 
Constabulary/PCC agreement received. 

 Gloucestershire County Council remain willing to digitise the fixed site camera network. Discussions are 
ongoing over a potential investment by them of up to £138,000. The potential multi usage camera chosen 
but this awaits full Home Office Type Approval. 

 We are implementing recent recommendations from the Chief Constable/Police and Crime Commissioner 
approved strategy document, a civilian investigator and a traffic evidential review officer have been 
recruited and will commence shortly, to allow us to investigate minor traffic collisions centrally, thereby 
reducing pressure upon front line officers and Incident Investigating Team (IIT). This should also lead to 
swifter resolution of collision cases and an increased uptake in education rather than prosecution. 

 We have recruited a Road safety Coordinator post which is funded through the traffic unit. A major 
responsibility for them is to ensure that Constabulary operational resources are channelled appropriately in 
support of National and Local road safety campaigns. 

 

 
Safe & Social Driving – Good News Stories 
 

 
Feedback from School who GRFS are delivering Road Safety Education to: 
Cotswolds School 
“I just wanted to say a big thank you for today. We really appreciate you coming in and taking the time to 
speak to our students on such an important topic. It was great to hear from students that they appreciated the 
sessions. I will look to contact you again next year for a similar program if you are happy to come in again.” 
Pates Grammar School 
“Mike and Si did a great job this morning. Thank you so much for lending them to us!” 
Long range direction cameras and Operation Indemnis 
We have been providing news stories to the PCC in regard to our usage of long range detection cameras, 
particularly on the A417, in support of Operation Indemnis. This has received significant news coverage in 
national and local press, and local radio and TV coverage. 

Page 49



 

34 

 
Safer cyber 
 
Intent: 
To ensure Gloucestershire is safer as people, commerce and other organisations increasingly live, 
trade and work on-line.  It underpins personal safety, economic growth and proseperity, in urban and 
rural environments, by supporting pepole of all ages, organisations and businesses 
 

 
1 

 
Multiple inputs have been provided for a variety of community groups giving the Safer Cyber message, 
the emphasis is now on encouraging groups into ongoing self-delivery.  
 

 
2 

 
Significant support has been provided to support the SchoolBeat initiative - quality Safer Cyber inputs 
have been crafted in partnership with local schools to ensure a holistic lesson plan exists and that the 
content is audience suitable. These inputs are centrally held and managed by Harm Reduction to 
prevent PCSOs and Constables diverging. 
 

 
3 

 
Social media continues to be used to reach a broad audience and an extra portal for people to access 
policing services in relation to Cyber-crime prevention. 
 

 
4 

 
Train the trainer sessions have been delivered into bank staff across the county, in partnership with the 
Retail Banking sector, to help reduce the potential for victims of financial and online fraud. 
 

 
5 

 
‘A to Z of cyber security’ messages are being promoted fortnightly through social media to maintain 
momentum and awareness. Linked into third party initiatives as appropriate. 
 

 
6 

 
Train the trainer inputs have been given to the Gloucestershire Family First initiative to enable them to 
deliver ongoing inputs on Safer Cyber and online welfare to the vulnerable children and families within 
the programme. Supported with content supplied by Glospol. 
 

 
7 

 
A library of Safer Cyber products/ presentations and content has been created and is now overseen by 
Harm Reduction and DI Mallon. This is a key requirement of scaling up our Safer Cyber messaging. 
 

 
8 

 
The first dedicated cyber investigator is in post (see entry 2 below) 
 

 
9 

 
Harm Reduction are working in partnership with a large collection of Gloucester Schools to create 
approved Safer Cyber content and the surrounding framework to deliver and measure effectiveness. 
 

 
Safer cyber – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 

 Work is continuing with our county schools to create approved Safer Cyber content and lessons to meet 

Page 50



 

35 

Safer Cyber Protect and Prevent work. 

 The Digital Intelligence Unit (DIU) has recruited a new PC as a Dedicated Cyber Crime investigator, a 
further staff investigator and administrator are being recruited currently. This will provide consistency and 
expertise to investigate such crimes and will inform the Safer Cyber messaging. The DIU will work in 
tandem with Harm Reduction across the 4P’s of Pursue, Prevent, Prepare and Protect. 

 Processes have been created by DI Mallon, and agreed with senior leaders to be implemented to 
understand the scale of cyber enabled and cyber dependent  crime within the Force area, with oversight 
focused within the Digital Intelligence unit (in line with imminent investigation capacity). 

 Review the requirements for support to different categories of potential victims. These include: large 
companies, Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs), schools and the general public.  

 Our focus to ‘industrialise' communications to the public has been agree (With the intention of reaching the 
maximum number of people and raise awareness of how cybercrime can be thwarted). The preparatory 
work and necessary actions to implemented this have been identified and are progressing. This will 
continue.  

 Establish more partnerships with commercial partners, whereby accredited cyber protect resources can be 
signposted to key businesses and Critical National Infrastructure within Gloucestershire. This is still 
pending as a necessary aspect of our Industrialised messaging plan. 

 New platforms to deliver the safer cyber message will be explored, such as Webinars, Youtube and 
business social media platforms (E.g.SLACK).  

 Greater and more effective use of the Gloucestershire Constabulary YouTube channel is being explored 
as a framework to store Safer Cyber (and other priority) messages and content. 

 Example YouTube video to be created on a suitable Safer Cyber theme – to test the feasibility of the point 
above. 

 

 
Safer cyber – Good News Stories 
 

 
No information provided  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

36 

 
A compassionate approach  
 
Intent: 
The Police and Crime Plan’s commitment to A compassionate approach was launched in September 2018 
during the annual Open Day at Cheltenham Animal Shelter. A delivery plan was drawn up, under which a 
number of activities have been taking place. The strategic lead for this work is Head of Public Affairs, Hilary 
Allison, and the police lead is Chief Inspector Richard Pegler. They are working with people within the 
Constabulary and OPCC, partner organisations and local communities. This is the first opportunity there has 
been to set out our progress. 
 

 
1 

 
Rural crime and wildlife crime national priorities have been embedded within the organisation and have 
been and will continue to be scored within Morile, our risk and prioritisation approach. 
 

 
2 

 
Storm tags and qualifiers have been revived to reflect the national priorities as above to assist with data 
management and performance research.  
 

 
3 

 
The Wildlife Crime Engagement Group continues to meet, building trust and confidence with interested 
partners and protector groups. It’s the only group of its kind in the region. Its TOR are shaped so that 
governance comes via A compassionate approach (ACA). This winter, we are working with Raptor 
Groups, the Angling Trust and Badger groups. 
 

 
4 

 
Our rural crime team has been working with key hunt partners to educate and promote good behaviour 
and legal activity through the season. Meetings were held with Master of the Fox Hounds (MFHA) and 
Countryside Alliance (CSA). We have reduced badger set interference this winter. The RECLOs are 
now investigating reports over the period with the support of our Local Investigation Teams (LIT). There 
was a much improved response to the issue this winter.  
 

 
5 

 
PC Ash Weller is investigating an estate in the Cotswolds regarding persistent raptor persecution.  
 

 
6 

 
PC Cath McDay is working with the RSPCA (Royal Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals) 
and Gwent Police regarding violent boar and deer poaching in the Forest of Dean. We continue to 
conduct anti-poaching patrols as a team with the Forestry Commission.  
 

 
7 

 
PC Cath McDay is investigating a dog breeder in Gwent who has sold sick puppies in the Forest of 
Dean and across the UK, in conjunction with the local authority and RSPCA.  
 

 
8 

PC Phil Mawdsley has worked in partnership with the Angling Trust and fisheries bailiffs to tackle 
poaching in our lakes and rivers. As a county, we have an excellent relationship and reputation with 
this partner. One of PC Mawdsley’s prosecutions made national news. 
  

 
9 

 
Rural and Environmental Crime Liaison Officer (RECLO) and Force Control Room (FCR) 
Dispatcher/Call Handler Vic Parker continues to promote and upskill the FCR team as to how we 

Page 52



 

37 

respond to wildlife, pet and rural crime. A training input has been held, these will continue through 
2019. 
  

 
10 

 
PC Melanie Campbell is exploring how at a district or county level, we can better manage horse 
abandonment and the ‘green yard issues’.  
 

 
11 

 
The rural crime team attended both the national rural crime and wildlife crime conferences. 
  

 
12 

 
Police lead for A compassionate approach, Chief Inspector Rich Pegler, attended the national Hunting 
and Badger Cull conference.  
 

 
13 

 
We have embedded valuing and recognition of our service animals into the organisation. For example, 
on the retirement of Police Horse Boris, the Chief Constables rode out with him. The Chief Constable 
invites dogs and their handlers to meet with him at HQWW for a cup of tea and chat as a way of  
saying thank you for their service when the dogs are due to retire. On the passing of PD Ted and 
retired PD Yogi and PD Omar, the Chief Constable wrote letters of condolence to their handlers and 
former handlers. 
 

 
14 

 
Chief Inspector Pegler and the Rural Crime Team and Community Harm Reduction Team (CHRT), 
Hilary Allison and the Police and Crime Commissioner supported ‘Santa Paws’ by helping to wrap gifts 
and deliver them to Cheltenham Animal Shelter, supporting two young local lads and their families.  
 

 
15 

 
We are reviewing of our equine management. An MOU has been written and National Standard 
Operating Procedure (SOP) is being written that underpins our animal husbandry to industry standards. 
British Horse Society approval is being sought for the Mounted Section. 
 

 
16 

 
We are reviewing our canine management (Dog Section). A SOP exits for treatment and training. We 
intend to introduce independent visits in a scheme run by the Dogs Trust to support our welfare 
initiative. A meeting with between the PCC, Chief Constable, Hilary Allison, PC Mark Avery (Dog 
Section) and The Dogs Trust will be taking place in March.  
 

 
17 

 
25 staff (police officers and police staff) have been trained to national NWCU (National Wildlife Crime 
Unit) standards as Rural and Environmental Crime Liaison Officers (RECLOs). We plan to maintain 
training and accreditation.  
 

 
18 

 
Four Rural Crime PC’s have been trained in Raptor handling.  
 

 
19 

 
Cool vests have been purchased for all of our police dogs to enable them to work comfortably during 
warm weather. 
 
 

Page 53



 

38 

 
20 

 
We attend (as a Constabulary and OPCC) meetings of the Local Animal Welfare Group, set up by the 
Manager of Cheltenham Animal Shelter 
 

 
21 

 
The OPCC and Constabulary publicly support ‘Finn’s Law’ to help protect all service animals. 
  

 
A compassionate approach – planned activities in next quarter 
 

 

 Delivery of training from the Horse Trust to capture and handle loose animals. 

 Working with Defra and our Local Authorities regarding ‘Green Yard issues’ of horse abandonment and 
grazing (some aspects of the above are ongoing pieces of work) 

 Explore and improve animal related crime prevention 

 Explore how the police and partners can better understand the links between animal and human cruelty 
and abuse. How can we prevent and deal with this issue? 

 Partnership meeting between Chief Inspector Pegler’s team, the Force Control Room (FCR) and the 
RSPCA about how can we work better together 

 Continued awareness training within the FCR 

 More work and greater liaison with the All Party Parliamentary Group for Animal Welfare (APGAW) 

 Creation and siting of road signs warning of deer in the road in a bid to reduce the number of dear deaths 
and - in a link with Safe and social driving - the number of road traffic collisions 

 Linking with the Community Harm Reduction Team (CHRT) to help pet owners find out more about how 
they can keep their pets safe from crime and harm and what they can do if they have crimes, such as the 
theft of dogs, committed against them 

 To understand better the issues around homelessness and dog ownership, including how many people are 
homeless because potential homes do not allow pets 

 Event to bring together key partners and communities who might be able to work with us to progress our 
commitment to A compassionate approach. 

 

 
A compassionate approach – Good News Stories 
 

 
A number of the areas outlined have case studies. One involves our work with the RSPCA. The strategic lead 
and colleagues from the OPCC attended a meeting of the Local Animal Welfare Group, during which an 
RSPCA Chief Inspector (whose area included Gloucestershire), spoke of some of the difficulties she and her 
colleagues had in trying to work with the police. This was brought back into the Constabulary and the Force 
Control Room (FCR) specifically. As a result, RECLO and FCR Dispatcher/Call Handler Vic Parker has started 
to promote and upskill her colleagues about how we respond to wildlife, pet and rural crime. A training input 
has been held and these will continue through 2019. Colleagues from the RSPCA will be visiting the Force 
Control Room and meet with Chief Inspector Pegler and his team to discuss more effective ways to work 
together. 
 

Page 54



 

39 

3. Overview of Budget 

 
Commissioner’s Fund – Priority Leads Fund at 24.01.2019 

 

 

Priority 
 

 

Projected Spend 2017/21 
 

Awards to date 2017/19 

Accessibility and accountability £49,248 £49,248 

Older but not overlooked £99,931 £51,699 

Young people becoming adults £355,857 £308,551 

Safe days and nights £251,982 £159,482 

Safe and social driving £17,173 £13,625 

Safer cyber £149,336 £30,336 

A compassionate approach £430 £430 

Green and pleasant county £0 £0 

Other £128,792 £122,625 

Projected Expenditure total £1,052,749 £735,996 

Total Budget c. £1,100,000   

 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Chief Executive Report
	7 PCP Highlight Report

